
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Wednesday, October 18, 2017 

5:00 PM to 7:30PM 

Elderday: 100 Pioneer Street, Santa Cruz, CA 95060 

AGENDA  

4:30 Dinner 

5:00 1. Call to Order/Establish Quorum 

5:02 2. Agenda Review 

5:05 3. Announcements/Program Updates 

5:10 4. *CONSENT AGENDA – Action Items 

In approving the consent agenda, the Board is approving recommendations within each 

committee’s minutes listed below. 

4.1 Draft Minutes of the August 16, 2017 Board Meeting* 

Shannon/Steve moved to approve the consent agenda as presented. MSP. 

4.2 Draft Minutes of the September 7, 2017 Finance Committee Meeting* 

4.3 Draft Minutes of the September 7, 2017 Governance Committee Meeting* 

Doug/Shannon moved to approve the staff recommendation of writing a letter of 

support for the Children’s Fund, and to revisit the item in the event that the fund is 

created to assess the Fund’s alignment with CB mission and values. MSP. 

4.4 Draft Minutes of the October 5, 2017 Finance Committee Meeting* 

4.5 Draft minutes of the October 5, Governance Committee Meeting* 

4.6 Draft Minutes of the 2017 BOD Retreat* 

a) Majel/Kenn moved to approve Resolution #2017-09-01. MSP 

b) Kenn/Nicolette moved to install Doug Underhill as Treasurer and Jack Jacobsen as 

Secretary. MSP 

5:15 5. Receive comments from members of the public on “Items not on the Agenda” 

5:20 6. Program Presentations 

 6.1 MOW 

5:40 7. Agency Business – Ray Cancino (20 min) 

7.1 Facilities 

7.1.1 MCR Refinancing – Action Item*  

Allow CEO to pursue refinancing as appropriate.  

7.1.2 La Manzana Building – General Update 

6:00 8. Development/Philanthropy Report– Virginia Wright  

 8.1 Philanthropy Report 

 8.2 Holiday Giving  

8.2.1 Board Match 

8.3 Food from the Heart  

6:50 10. Finance Committee Update – Cathy Benson 

1



7:00 11. Written Reports 

 11.1 Philanthropy Report for September 2017 

 11.2 Philanthropy Report for October 2017 

 11.2 Financial Report from the September 7, 2017 Finance Committee Meeting  

 11.3 Financial Report from the October 5, 2017 Finance Committee Meeting 

 11.3 Community Bridges Program Reports – CACFP, ELD 

7:00 12. Newspaper Articles  

7:00 13. Items for Next Agenda 

7:00 14. Adjourn Regular Meeting 

7:00 15. CLOSED SESSION 

7:30 16. Adjourn Closed Session 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Next Meeting:  

Wednesday, November 15, 2017 

2



 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

Wednesday, August 16, 2017 

5:00 PM to 7:00PM 

Elderday: 100 Pioneer Street, Santa Cruz, CA 95060 

 

Draft Minutes 

 

Members Present: Steve McKay, Nicolette Lee, Kenn Barroga, Shannon Brady, Rebecca Fowler, 

Dough Underhill, Casey Wu, Majel Jordan, Jack Jacobsen. 

Excused Absences: Heather Lennard, Jorge Mendez, Martin Bernal, Pam Fields, Sara Siegel. 

Staff Present: Raymon Cancino, Julie Gilbertson, Seth McGibben, Cathy Benson, Lisa 

Berkowitz, Lisa Hindman Holbert, Kate Hinnenkamp, Lois Sones, Kirk Ance, Alma Molino, Tyler 

Smith. 

Guest: Clay Kempf, Nancy Sherrod 

4:30   Dinner 

5:00   1. Call to Order/ No Quorum 

Ray handed out a prompt and asked people to share CB moments that they are proud of, 

that inspired them, or a moment that reminded them of CB.  

5:07 2. Agenda Review 

 Consent agenda is moved forward in wait for quorum.  

5:07   3. Announcements/Program Updates 

HR director noted that Peggy Alvaro, long term CB employee and site manager of the 

Watsonville dining site, passed away. Peggy Alvaro was with us for over 20 years, and a 

memorial service will be held Thursday with representation from CB. 

5:09   5. Receive comments from members of the public on “Items not on the Agenda” 

None. 

5:10   6. Program Presentations 

             6.1 WIC 

BOD member Nicolette Lee visited WIC on 8/11 during the 11th annual Breastfeeding Walk, 

and noted that the walk occurred in conjunction with the Farmers Market, which was helpful 

in drawing in participants that otherwise might not have known about the event. It was clear 

that this smaller community is part of the bigger, and that it is a cornerstone in the 

3



community. CEO noted that the farmers marked has a direct link to WIC as all Santa Cruz 

County Farmers Markets, except for Aptos, accept WIC coupons for fresh food and vegetables. 

WIC Program Director Cathy Cavanaugh noted that August is the world breast feeding month, 

and shared images from the walk. Cathy pointed to an article in the 3/29 issue of Budget and 

Policy Priorities, that points to a range of positive health outcomes for WIC participants. Cathy 

referred to the WIC list of foods can be bought with vouchers, and clarified that participants 

are limited to breastfeeding mothers and children under 5 years of age. The financial impact 

in Santa Cruz County is $400K per month spent in grocery stores, with the highest redemption 

rate and most dollars spent in Watsonville. Cathy gave an overview of the county’s 

demographics of WIC participants, divided into San Lorenzo Valley, Santa Cruz, and 

Watsonville. Cathy further noted that while many view WIC as an emergency program, it is 

being framed as an educational program. WIC is using technology as much as possible. WIC 

participation is falling all over the Country, and local reasons include families moving away 

due to cost of living, fewer teen pregnancies, lower birth rate, and families not able to visit 

WIC sites during working hours. Steve McKay noted that families may not be able to access 

services as federal poverty levels are not updated to reflect local incomes and cost of living.  

5:45 Quorum Established 

5:46 4. *CONSENT AGENDA – Action Items 

In approving the consent agenda, the Board is approving recommendations within each 

committee’s minutes listed below. 

4.1 Draft Minutes of the June 21, 2017 Board Meeting* 

a. Jack and Jorge moved to approve the June 21 consent agenda as presented. MSP. 

b. Jack/Jorge moved to approve conducting a capital campaign. MSP. 

4.2 Draft Minutes of the June 1, 2017 Finance Committee Meeting* 

4.3 Draft Minutes of the August 3, 2017 Finance Committee Meeting* 

4.4 Draft Minutes of the August 3, 2017 Governance Committee Meeting* 

a. Shannon/Jorge moved to approve the CB retirement plan. MSP 

Shannon/Steve moved to approve the consent agenda as presented. MSP. 

5:49   7. Agency Business – Ray Cancino (20 min) 

7.1   Retreat 

CEO noted that September 22, noon-6 pm is established as the time for the retreat. We will 

meet for lunch at Jalisco’s at noon, and follow with the retreat 1 pm-6 pm  at the WIC Big Bird 

room at the new CB  building. The committee is currently finalizing facilitators and guest 

speakers. 

7.2 Development Director – Virginia Wright 

CEO passed around DDs resume, and noted Wright’s work experience.  

7.2   Budgets 

4



CEO shared a flow chart showing the impacts of budget shortfalls, and long- and short-term 

mitigation strategies for MCR, ELD, and MOW. Although $85K from the county and $20K from 

the city was regained for MOW, the $85K was unexpectedly allotted for only one year. CEO 

noted the need to be conservative in case the $85K is not allotted the next two years. MOW is 

seeing an increase in cost, and is currently on a one-year extended lease. This year MOW is 

using $90K of carry forward funds.  

7.2.1 MOW- Clay Kempf 

Clay Kempf distributed a 2017 Senior Fact Sheet for Santa Cruz County and chart depicting 

trends in funding for local senior programs, and noted that funding for senior programs is 

declining while the population is growing at unprecedented levels. Clay expressed deep 

concern about this trend and a lack of care and awareness from elected officials, and noted 

the importance of being active voices in promoting and protecting senior's rights. Clay noted 

past and ongoing advocacy efforts, and that having ongoing conversations with elected 

officials and taking some heat is part of the process. It is also important to celebrate 

successes. Clay invited BOD members to attend the Solution Summit on 10/18, and noted 

that an Advocacy Committee that now meets every 2nd Monday of every month resulted from 

last year’s summit. Clay will send a formal invitation to BOD to attend the Summit and to join 

the Advocacy Committee. MOW is the largest program funded by the Seniors Council at 

$.75m. 

7.2.2         MCR 

MCR is using prior year funds, as well as layoffs of part-time staff and reduction in all staff’s 

hours, to cover the $41.2K deficit.  

7.2.3         ELD 

ELD is freezing all staff salaries to mitigate a $19.7K deficit. A 3-year rent reduction was 

successfully negotiated with the Ow’s. 

7.2.4         FRC-Kiaser 

6:17 8. Capital Campaign- Nancy Sherrod (40 min) 

CEO noted the discussion from last meeting and that he will be mindful about the timely 

sharing of future communication plans. Nancy Sherrod shared her experiences from working 

with the 2008 CASA $1.5 M capital campaign, and the initial nervousness of the CASA board. 

Nancy noted that a Capital Campaign will rejuvenated people and facilitate a renewed vision, 

as we need to tell why we are doing what we are doing, and why giving will make a difference. 

The CASA campaign resulted in renewed donors. Evolvement happens due to having a 

location. The CASA campaign resulted in a book library, computer room, and a location that 

children wanted to visit! Capital Campaign makes you brave. If you believe in the “why”, the 

fundraising becomes easy. The prospect committee’s purpose is to look at individuals in our 

community for potential donors. A capital campaign forces a stronger overall message that 

can be used in the future. Nancy deemed that Community Bridges is poised to do this well, 

5



and to succeed in a rewarding effort. Nancy shared summary of the CASA campaign and 

explored pros and cons. She further discussed the importance of hiring a consultant whose 

first steps include presenting capital campaign materals to community leaders and 

subsequently compiling a report for BOD. The consultant will estimate how much can be 

raised, and will ask for community leaders’ advise and feedback on messaging. The 

consultant can both do the initial work to produce the report and conduct the campaign, but 

these are not always done by the same individual. A steering committee should consist of a 

few BOD members and community members. CASA trained its BOD members, and practiced 

asking for donations by going to other BOD member’s homes with capital campaign packets 

and a pitch. CASA produced campaign materials in house, but this part is important, and 

external help may be warranted. The CASA BOD of 15 members combined pledged $200K, 

and met 3-4 times within their subcommittees. Nancy clarified that the quiet faze is when 

50% of gifts are secured before going public with the campaign. CASA increased staff by 20 

hours a week during the campaign. The donor walls at the CASA house consists of tiles that 

donors drew on, and created a long-lasting visual representation of the giving, co-created 

with donors. BOD does need to embrace the campaign fully in order for it to be successful. 

CEO gave an overview of the projected timeline, and pointed to four major themes: steward 

the environment, bridge the digital divide, beautify the campus, and secure financial 

stability. Nancy noted that the steering committee will make the final approval of marketing 

materials. Nancy asked what BOD and staff is excited, concerned, or have questions about. 

Board member noted that this is an opportunity for evolvement, and a permanent home, and 

that it can help tie together the fundraising message by solidifying programs together. Board 

members shared excitement at the prospect of financial stability and investment in 

Watsonville. CEO noted that this is also a worry as not all donors want to invest in 

Watsonville. Staff expressed worry about the staff effort needed in addition to regularly 

performed tasks. 

Next steps: 

1. Reestablishing the philanthropy committee and identifying BOD members to be involved 

in the Capital campaign effort. 

2. Hire a consultant 

CEO noted that we need to be prepared to find buildings for LL and MOW Kitchen, and asked 

whether a campaign for all three projects would be wise. Nancy suggested a study task force 

be formed to explore such options.  

7:08 9. Development/Philanthropy Report– Ray Cancino 

             9.1 Philanthropy Report 

We have already raised almost $50K more than we had at this point last year. This amounts to 

23% of annual goals raised already and includes Farm to Fork and other donations. 

9.1.1 Farm to Fork Report 

6



We raised 30% more than last year due to new sponsors and lower cost as we were not 

renting tablecloths, glasses, silverware etc. This will result in more funds back to programs 

this year than last.  

9.2 BOD Members Attending Events 

CEO shared a visual representation depicting how BOD members can best represent CB at 

events. These include; welcome and thank guests for coming; plan and practice an elevator 

pitch about why people should support CB; ask for feedback from guests on food, program, 

venue etc.(report back); listen for successes and concerns (report back); Have fun! 

9.2.1 Elevator Speech 

7:14 10. Finance Committee Update – Cathy Benson 

CFO shared an infographic showing that by programs setting aside a minimum of 1% per 

year, the agency will have a minimum reserve of 25% by 2040. Ninety-one percent of 

programs have met the 1% reverse increase, and 36.4% of programs have already met the 

25% reserve goal. By the close of the 16/17 FY, the total agency reserve had increased by 

5.86%.  

7:22   11. Written Reports 

             11.1 Philanthropy Report for August 2017 

             11.2 Financial Report from the August 3, 2017 Finance Committee Meeting 

             11.3 Community Bridges Program Reports – MOW, LL, WIC 

7:22   12. Newspaper Articles 

7:22   13. Items for Next Agenda 

 None. 

7:22  14. Adjourn Regular Meeting 

7:25  15. CLOSED SESSION 

7:42   16. Adjourn Closed Session 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Next Meeting: 

Wednesday, October 18, 2017 

5:00 PM to 7:15 PM 

Location: Elderday 100 Pioneer  

7



 

Finance Committee 

Thursday, September 7, 2017 

11:00 AM – 12:00 PM 

                                                  Community Bridges, Aptos  

MINUTES 

Members present: Jack Jacobsen, Doug Underhill 

Staff present: Cathy Benson. 

Minutes: Cathy Benson 

11:15   Agenda review 

11:15 CFO Report – Cathy Benson 

a) Program Budget Summary Review – July (New Fiscal Year) 

Highlights:  Projected Programs’ Loss 17/18 at <$30K>, improvement over 

budgeted net program loss of <$37.5K> 

                 LL-Corrected 5310 Grant revenue <$28K> due to multiple fiscal  

                 year contract. 

                 MOW-Staffing changes and formula correction to  

                 indirect overhead owed resulted in +$64K . 

                 CDD-Enrollment changes <$25K>, still $23K YE gain 

                 Adm-Revenue drop from MOW and CDD changes <$38K>              

b) Financial Statement Review – P&L positive as of 7/31, Balance Sheet 

unavailable for July as 16/17 balances not rolled forward at this time. 

c) Cash Flow and Line of Credit – Reviewed, no use of credit expected 

this quarter. 

d) Investments and Endowment – Reviewed 

11:55 Items for Next Agenda - None 

12:00 Adjourn 

 

 
                                                                           

 

8



 
Governance Committee 

Thursday, September 7, 2017 

12:00PM – 1:00PM 

Community Bridges (CB), Aptos 

  

DRAFT MINUTES 

  

Present: Rebecca Fowler, Shannon Brady, Doug Underhill, Jack Jacobsen. 

Staff: Seth McGibben, Raymon Cancino, Virginia Wight 

Notes: Tonje Switzer 

 

12:00 Meeting to order. Quorum Established. 

12:01 Agenda Review 

12:02 CEO Report – Ray Cancino 

1. Introduction of Development Director – Virginia Wright 

2. New Grants 

a.      Kaiser 

CEO noted that this $15K grant will offset some of the recent budget cuts.  

b.      Listen for Good for FRCs 

This is a $45K Packard foundation sponsored grant specifically targeted to update and 

streamline the client feedback surveys, using the FRCs surveys as a pilot project for 

the full agency. 

3. Facilities 

a. Vista Verde 

There was a break-in to this facility last weekend, but not much was stolen. 

b. LMCR 

The renovation project is going well. Two restrooms are completed as well as most of 

the windows. The majority of the roofing and the rest of windows will be projected for 

the next few weeks.  

4. City council member request for support 

Martine Watkins has requested Community Bridges’ support in an attempt of using 

cannabis revenue for the creation of a Children’s Fund. The proposal will be presented for 

BOS on 9/12. CB considerations include whether this is in line with our mission and 

9



values. City Manager prefer this does not happen in an attempt to preserve funds 

internally, but has not expressed having an issue with cannabis tax being the funding 

source. Watkins asked for letter of support and presence at the BOS meeting. CEO noted 

that this request exemplifies the advocacy model of prospecting. Committee member 

noted that marijuana is still illegal federally and has adverse health effects for children. 

Doug/Shannon moved to approve the staff recommendation of writing a letter of 

support for the Children’s Fund, and to revisit the item in the event that the fund is 

created to assess the Fund’s alignment with CB mission and values. MSP. 

5. BOD Elections – Discussion 

Jorge will step down from his role as treasurer, and Doug is nominated to replace him. 

Jack is nominated to replace Doug as secretary. The BOD will cast their votes at the Board 

retreat. Election of the new BOD chair will take place at the November BOD meeting. 

6. CB Employee Survey 

CEO presented a summary of the findings and noted that participation was much lower 

than last year. CEO noted that the survey was distributed after budget cuts prompted 

reductions in staff, which may account for some of the findings. Improving 

communication between MT and line staff is a priority, and will be a discussion at CQI. 

7. Advocacy Update 

a. AB 300 

CEO noted that this local Assembly Bill is currently moving through the State Senate 

and will allow communities to receive block funding for childcare subsidization and 

decide locally how to allocate the funding. 

b. AB 1250 is held in suspense file for one year and can only move forward after one year 

and if sponsored by a different Assembly member. The bill would limit counties ability 

to contact with providers above $100K, and would have affected contracts between 

SC County and CB. 

1:00   Adjourn 

  

  

  

  

  

  

Next Meeting: Thursday October 5, 2017 

12:00 – 1:00PM 

Community Bridges, Aptos 

10



 
Finance Committee 

Thursday, October 5, 2017 

11:00 AM – 12:00 PM 

Community Bridges, Aptos 

 

Draft Notes 

Members present: Jack Jacobsen, Casey Wu, Doug Underhill 

Staff present: Cathy Benson, Raymon Cancino 

Minutes: Tonje Switzer 

 

11:12 Agenda review 

11:12 CFO Report – Cathy Benson 

The annual projection is ready. 

a) Program Budget Summary Review – August 

- Highlights:  Projected Programs’ Loss 17/18 at <$19.5K>, an improvement over 

our original 17/18 budget. 

- LL-Revised Measure D 1st Qtr  <$50K> 

LL will likely see another positive fluctuation next month. It is unclear exactly what 

revenue we can expect from Measure D as we received $50 K less than expected for 

the first quarter then just received $92K more.   There will be fluctuations, and it 

will be difficult to predict actual revenue until we see the annual trend. 

- MOW-Staff LOA’s lowered personnel <$6.9K> 

Two out of three cooks are currently out on a leave of absence.  

- CDD-Increased enrollment projections 

CDD saw a gain due to inclusions of projected new enrollees at Nuevo Dia and 

Highlands but the number of children actually attending can be expected to go 

down by the end of the month. CDD is transitioning to digital attendance tracking 

yet is experiencing a slow start getting every site database proficient.  

- FRC’s & Adm-New Rockefeller Fdn Grant +$30K 

11



Listen for Good is a grant where we are sponsored by the Packard Foundation to 

streamline our client feedback surveys.    Combined with another grant this has 

enabled us to restore hours at LOCR for all employees to 40 hours/week. 

- ELD - New hires are not waiving health insurance and ADA was lower in August.  

ELD has had  2 resignations, but has replaced them both.   

b) Financial Statement Review – August, Rev & Exps only 

Advances are in from some funding sources, but we will not receive revenue from 

our local jurisdictions until 17/18 contacts are signed.   The SC County will have 

advanced us for three months as of September and will advance for three more in 

a few weeks.   ELD’s revenue is different as it is dependent on ADA, and only counts 

if a participant spends a minimum of four hours on site.   Overall earned revenue 

exceeds expenses.   Mountain Affair is coming up on 10/13 and these unrestricted 

revenues, along with other event revenue, result in a noticeable increase in our 

bottom line on our Revenue & Expense report.  

c)     Cash Flow and Line of Credit - Reviewed 

d)    Investments and Endowments – Reviewed 

Our Burroughs investments reflect $19K worth of stock sold for our 2017 County 

commitment. 

e)     MCR Property Financing-Update 

Our escrow agreement stipulates that we either refinance or pay $35K to escrow 

by 12/17/17.   We are currently working on securing financing with County Bank.  

Bank of America was unable to offer us a commercial loan. We are looking to 

finance $520 K.   Doug noted that the property values are likely to increase in the 

Valley. 

f) La Manzana Property-Update 

Roofing is slated to begin 10/9.  

11:55 Items for Next Agenda 

 12:00 Adjourn 

  

  

 

 

 

 

  

                                                                     Next Meeting November 2, 2017 

12



 
Governance Committee 

Thursday, October 5, 2017 

12:00PM – 1:00PM 
Community Bridges (CB), Aptos   

Draft Minutes 

 

Members Present: Shannon Brady, Rebecca Fowler, Jack Jacobsen, Doug Underhill. 

Staff present: Ray Cancino, Seth McGibben. 

Notes: Tonje Switzer 
  

12:08 Meeting to order. Quorum established. 

12:08 Agenda Review 

12:08 CEO Report – Ray Cancino 
1. Retreat - Follow up discussion 

CEO noted that Eugenia will provide a next steps and visioning document after reviewing 

retreat notes, and asked Committee for their feedback and perspective before talking to her. 
CAO shared feedback from MT that the values exercise was confusing and unclear, and that 

more could have been achieved with the available time. Committee noted that the coming 

together and getting to know each other created a sense of comradery. Don Lane’s 
presentation was very well received. Committee asked whether Eugenia would be coming back 

to a BOD meeting and present on how Don’s presentation connects to the values/vision 

exercise, and on the results of the exercise.  

2.      Facilities 
a.      La Manzana Property - Water Leaks 

We have had a water leak in the WIC Watsonville site that turned into a bigger project that has 

displaced five employees from their work areas. 
b.      Highlands Park - Break in 

This is the second break in this year. The facility has also experienced a transient individual 

with mental health issues that has been on the property throwing rocks. It is unknown whether 
the incidents are related. 

12:30 CLOSED SESSION 

12:38   Adjourn 

  

 

Next Meeting: Thursday November 2, 2017 

12:00 – 1:00PM 
Community Bridges, Aptos 

13



 
2017 BOARD RETREAT 

Friday September 22, 2017 

12:00 PM to 6:30 PM 

WIC Suite T “Big Bird Room”, 521 Main Street, Watsonville, CA 95076 

 

12:00 Lunch at Jalisco’s Restaurant 

01:38 Agency Advocacy Model – Raymon Cancino  

Ray noted that everything we do in our day-to-day work is related to politics. By being part of 

the discussion and building political capital we are affecting decisions that will be made with 

or without our input. Creating an active grassroots base helps in building relationships and 

affords us a barrier between the agency leadership and decisions that impact our work 

negatively. By diversifying the message we can ensure that everyone are involved using 

methods such as phone calls, personnel meetings, public meetings, community spaces (i.e. 

social and traditional media). Advocacy is not linear but rather subject to the environment. 

CEO used Measure D as an example of a successful advocacy campaign that combined the 

advocacy modes of Defender, Analyzer, and Prospector in order to win a major revenue 

source affecting many CB clients. CEO noted that although the campaign was successful, it 

did not come without hardship such as letters and phone calls against CEO. 

02:00 Values Exercise – Eugenia  

Eugenia asked retreat attendees to choose and rank the three values that best represent the 

overarching themes of: 

1. Excellence 

2. Community 

3. Integrity 

4. Initiative 

5. Commitment  

Eugenia noted that advocacy relates to our sphere of influence, but does not exist in a 

vacuum. The line between each sphere is where we balance barriers and supportive forces. 

Today’s exercise is about mapping values and linking the Spheres of Advocacy to the 

program level using the topics: 

1. Clients 

2. Food 

14



3. Community Centers 

4. Access 

5. Advocacy. 

 

Eugenia asked that everyone stay with lens of the client for this exercise, and divided retreat 

participants into five diverse table groups consisting of PDs, Admin staff, and BOD members. 

2:30 Local Advocacy Expertise - Don Lane 

Don noted that diversity of tactics is important, as is picking the appropriate tactic for each 

issue at hand. There was some discussion about how to bring the conversation back to a 

community space so that a community can speak for themselves without making it seem to 

come only from CB. Don spoke about the importance of asking stakeholders directly what we 

can do to convince them and/or help them change their position. Building relationships 

outside of actions is a precursor to this, and inviting them to events is one example of 

relationship building. Don noted the importance of identifying and strategizing with our 

strongest allies, which removes CB from the center of taking funding away from other 

programs or agencies. Don noted that programs have to play within the framework 

stakeholders present, even when funds go towards trending issues versus actual data-driven 

causes. Exposing flawed logic models is important by showing how it will affect clients on the 

ground level. 

3:15 Themes and Messaging: Setting the Stage - Eugenia  

Eugenia asked retreat participants to meet in their groups and discuss how their keyword is 

linked to each of the top three values by creating an illustrative story that hold the clients in 

focus.  

 

Group 1: 

EXCELLENCE 

● Quality (23) 

● Impact (18) 

● Effective (17) 

 

Group 2: 

 INTEGRITY 

 Trustworthy (15) 

 Commitment (15) 

 Ethical (12) 

 

Group 3: 

COMMUNITY 

15



 
2017 BOARD RETREAT 

Friday September 22, 2017 

12:00 PM to 6:30 PM 

WIC Suite T “Big Bird Room”, 521 Main Street, Watsonville, CA 95076 

 

12:00 Lunch at Jalisco’s Restaurant 

01:38 Agency Advocacy Model – Raymon Cancino  

Ray noted that everything we do in our day-to-day work is related to politics. By being part of 

the discussion and building political capital we are affecting decisions that will be made with 

or without our input. Creating an active grassroots base helps in building relationships and 

affords us a barrier between the agency leadership and decisions that impact our work 

negatively. By diversifying the message we can ensure that everyone are involved using 

methods such as phone calls, personnel meetings, public meetings, community spaces (i.e. 

social and traditional media). Advocacy is not linear but rather subject to the environment. 

CEO used Measure D as an example of a successful advocacy campaign that combined the 

advocacy modes of Defender, Analyzer, and Prospector in order to win a major revenue 

source affecting many CB clients. CEO noted that although the campaign was successful, it 

did not come without hardship such as letters and phone calls against CEO. 

02:00 Values Exercise – Eugenia  

Eugenia asked retreat attendees to choose and rank the three values that best represent the 

overarching themes of: 

1. Excellence 

2. Community 

3. Integrity 

4. Initiative 

5. Commitment  

Eugenia noted that advocacy relates to our sphere of influence, but does not exist in a 

vacuum. The line between each sphere is where we balance barriers and supportive forces. 

Today’s exercise is about mapping values and linking the Spheres of Advocacy to the 

program level using the topics: 

1. Clients 

2. Food 

16



3. Community Centers 

4. Access 

5. Advocacy. 

Eugenia asked that everyone stay with lens of the client for this exercise, and divided retreat 

participants into five diverse table groups consisting of PDs, Admin staff, and BOD members. 

2:30 Local Advocacy Expertise - Don Lane 

Don noted that diversity of tactics is important, as is picking the appropriate tactic for each 

issue at hand. There was some discussion about how to bring the conversation back to a 

community space so that a community can speak for themselves without making it seem to 

come only from CB. Don spoke about the importance of asking stakeholders directly what we 

can do to convince them and/or help them change their position. Building relationships 

outside of actions is a precursor to this, and inviting them to events is one example of 

relationship building. Don noted the importance of identifying and strategizing with our 

strongest allies, which removes CB from the center of taking funding away from other 

programs or agencies. Don noted that programs have to play within the framework 

stakeholders present, even when funds go towards trending issues versus actual data-driven 

causes. Exposing flawed logic models is important by showing how it will affect clients on the 

ground level. 

3:15 Themes and Messaging: Setting the Stage - Eugenia  

Eugenia asked retreat participants to meet in their groups and discuss how their keyword is 

linked to each of the top three values by creating an illustrative story that hold the clients in 

focus.  

Group 1: 

EXCELLENCE 

● Quality (23) 

● Impact (18) 

● Effective (17) 

Group 2: 

 INTEGRITY 

 Trustworthy (15) 

 Commitment (15) 

 Ethical (12) 

Group 3: 

COMMUNITY 

 Collaboration (12) 

 Dignity (14) 

 Customer Service (9) 

 

17



Group 4: 

INITIATIVE 

 Leadership (36) 

 Vision (17) 

 Passion (14) 

Group 5: 

 Continuous Improvement (30) 

 Engagement (23) 

 Teamwork (12) 

Upon completion of the exercise, Eugenia noted that this is the beginning of a conversation 

among staff and board about types of advocacy and alignment with agency values. 

5:00 Resolution #2017-09-01 *Action Item* 

Majel/Kenn moved to approve resolution to authorize CB to enter into funding contract 

1718-02 with the Seniors Council/Area Agency on Aging (AAA), and for CEO to execute 

contracts with that same entity for the 2017-18 program year. MSP 

5:05 Board Election 

Kenn/Nicolette moved to install Doug Underhill as Treasurer and Jack Jacobsen as 

Secretary. MSP 

 

 

 

 

18



C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 B
R

ID
G

E
S

P
ro

g
ra

m
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
S

u
m

m
a

ry
 

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 B
R

ID
G

E
S

J
u

ly
 3

1
, 

2
0

1
7

 
P

ro
g

ra
m

 B
u

d
g

e
t 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

P
ro

je
ct

io
n

s 
fo

r 
Y

e
a

r 
E

n
d

in
g

 6
-3

0
-1

8
J

u
ly

 3
1

, 
2

0
1

7
 

A
 

B
 

C
D

E
F

G
H

I
K

A
n

n
u

a
l

 
 

(E
-D

)
(B

+G
)

6/
30

/1
7

17
/1

8
C

u
rr

en
t

C
u

rr
en

t
A

s 
Ye

t
N

et
G

o
a

l 2
5%

14
.5

%

U
n

a
u

d
it

ed
B

a
la

n
ce

d
P

ro
je

ct
ed

P
ro

je
ct

ed
U

n
se

cu
re

d
20

17
-2

01
8

C
u

m
u

la
ti

ve
R

es
er

ve
G

en
'l

 &
P

R
O

G
R

A
M

 N
A

M
E

:
B

a
la

n
ce

B
u

d
g

et
E

xp
en

se
s

R
ev

en
u

es
R

ev
en

u
es

G
a

in
/L

o
ss

G
a

in
/L

o
ss

%
A

d
m

 E
xp

W
IC

   
(O

ct
-S

e
p

t 
F

F
Y

)
17

0,
88

5
   

   
   

2,
45

0,
31

7
   

   
 

2,
36

5,
49

1
2,

37
6,

03
5

98
9

10
,5

44
   

   
   

  
18

1,
42

9
   

   
   

7.
7%

29
7,

10
3

   
   

   

C
h

il
d

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

D
iv

28
,5

61
   

   
   

  
2,

18
5,

16
0

   
   

 
2,

11
7,

34
8

2,
14

0,
66

8
15

4,
63

4
23

,3
20

   
   

   
  

51
,8

81
   

   
   

  
2.

5%
30

2,
33

0

E
ld

e
rd

a
y

(1
00

,2
40

)
   

   
 

1,
99

5,
51

6
   

   
 

1,
97

7,
21

3
1,

98
2,

82
4

18
9,

39
1

5,
61

1
   

   
   

   
  

(9
4,

62
9)

   
   

   
 

-4
.8

%
28

6,
48

7

M
e

a
ls

 o
n

 W
h

e
e

ls
55

6,
69

4
   

   
   

1,
76

2,
03

7
   

   
 

1,
71

4,
87

1
1,

68
2,

17
6

24
9,

78
8

(3
2,

69
5)

   
   

   
 

52
3,

99
9

   
   

   
31

.6
%

23
2,

67
0

L
if

t 
L

in
e

(1
47

,4
98

)
   

   
 

2,
72

3,
07

2
   

   
 

2,
69

2,
88

1
2,

66
7,

00
6

88
,1

95
(2

5,
87

5)
   

   
   

 
(1

73
,3

73
)

   
   

 
-7

.5
%

21
3,

02
6

L
a

 M
a

n
za

n
a

 C
o

m
m

ty
 R

e
s

95
,1

81
   

   
   

  
66

3,
29

2
   

   
   

  
65

9,
02

9
66

7,
04

2
9,

35
5

8,
01

3
   

   
   

   
  

10
3,

19
4

   
   

   
15

.7
%

87
,1

98

M
o

u
n

ta
in

 C
o

m
m

ty
 R

e
s

18
7,

43
8

   
   

   
36

1,
78

2
   

   
   

  
36

3,
22

0
35

1,
92

7
42

,4
31

(1
1,

29
3)

   
   

   
 

17
6,

14
5

   
   

   
48

.5
%

51
,2

26

N
u

e
v

a
 V

is
ta

 C
o

m
m

ty
 R

e
s

54
,2

81
   

   
   

  
34

9,
81

0
   

   
   

  
33

2,
07

0
33

4,
35

9
1,

00
0

2,
28

9
   

   
   

   
  

56
,5

70
   

   
   

  
17

.0
%

46
,0

35

L
iv

e
 O

a
k

 C
o

m
m

ty
 R

e
s

11
3,

79
9

   
   

   
28

9,
18

5
   

   
   

  
28

7,
69

0
28

9,
04

0
18

,2
32

1,
35

0
   

   
   

   
  

11
5,

14
9

   
   

   
40

.0
%

41
,7

15

C
A

C
F

P
   

(O
ct

-S
e

p
t 

F
F

Y
)

17
,4

61
   

   
   

  
3,

73
2,

69
0

   
   

 
3,

78
8,

40
7

3,
81

3,
70

7
0

25
,3

00
   

   
   

  
42

,7
61

   
   

   
  

-1
6.

7%
33

,6
69

A
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti

o
n

18
,9

46
   

   
   

  
1,

67
7,

78
5

   
   

 
1,

67
0,

28
9

   
   

 
1,

63
5,

67
0

6,
00

0
(3

4,
61

9)
   

   
   

 
(1

5,
67

3)
   

   
   

 
-0

.9
%

2,
40

2

P
h

il
a

n
th

ro
p

y
61

,0
18

   
   

   
  

15
0,

64
5

   
   

   
  

15
3,

02
7

15
0,

64
5

11
2,

16
4

(2
,3

82
)

   
   

   
   

58
,6

36
   

   
   

  
38

.3
%

21
,8

44
T

O
T

A
L

 P
R

O
G

 O
P

E
R

A
T

IO
N

S
1

,0
5

6
,5

2
7

   
1

8
,3

4
1

,2
9

1
  

1
8

,1
2

1
,5

3
6

  
1

8
,0

9
1

,0
9

9
  

8
7

2
,1

7
9

   
   

(3
0

,4
3

7
)

   
   

  
1

,0
2

6
,0

9
0

   
7

.4
9

%
1

,6
1

5
,7

0
5

L
O

C
R

-C
a

p
it

a
l C

a
m

p
a

ig
n

39
9,

75
0

   
   

   
47

,0
97

   
   

   
   

  
23

,3
01

42
,7

63
0

19
,4

62
   

   
   

  
41

9,
21

2
   

   
   

N
A

81
6

N
u

e
v

a
 V

is
ta

 P
ro

p
. 

E
q

u
it

y
20

0,
69

4
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0
0

0
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

20
0,

69
4

   
   

   
N

A
0

F
ix

e
d

 A
ss

e
ts

 &
 G

e
n

'l
 A

g
y

97
9,

15
8

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
16

,8
88

15
6,

56
7

0
13

9,
67

9
   

   
   

1,
11

8,
83

7
   

  
N

A
2,

58
2

T
O

T
A

L
 A

G
E

N
C

Y
2

,6
3

6
,1

2
9

   
1

8
,3

8
8

,3
8

8
  

1
8

,1
6

1
,7

2
5

  
1

8
,2

9
0

,4
3

0
  

8
7

2
,1

7
9

   
   

1
2

8
,7

0
5

   
   

 
2

,7
6

4
,8

3
3

   
7

.4
9

%
1

,6
1

9
,1

0
3

   

   
  N

o
te

: 
 M

O
W

 :
 $

3
5

0
,0

0
0

 o
f 

M
O

W
 E

n
d

o
w

m
e

n
t 

re
v

e
n

u
e

 s
h

o
w

n
 o

n
 F

ix
e

d
 A

ss
e

ts
 &

 G
e

n
e

ra
l A

g
e

n
cy

 6
/3

0
/1

7
 F

u
n

d
 B

a
la

n
ce

.

   
  N

o
te

: 
 L

L
 :

 $
2

5
0

,0
0

0
 o

f 
p

ri
o

r 
y

e
a

r 
L

L
 lo

ss
e

s 
in

cl
u

d
e

d
 in

 F
ix

e
d

 A
ss

e
ts

 &
 G

e
n

e
ra

l A
g

e
n

cy
 F

u
n

d
 B

a
la

n
ce

.

   
  N

o
te

: 
F

a
m

il
ia

 P
ro

p
e

rt
y

 V
a

lu
e

 o
f 

$
2

0
0

,6
9

4
 m

o
v

e
d

 t
o

 E
q

u
it

y
 f

ro
m

 I
n

co
m

e
.

   
  *

* 
 F

ix
e

d
 A

ss
e

t 
p

u
rc

h
a

se
s 

a
n

d
 P

a
ss

-T
h

ru
 e

x
p

e
n

se
s 

e
x

e
m

p
t;

 A
d

m
in

 P
ro

g
ra

m
 r

e
st

ri
ct

e
d

 t
o

 5
%

 g
a

in
 d

u
e

 t
o

 F
e

d
e

ra
l r

e
st

ri
ct

io
n

s 
o

n
 in

d
ir

e
ct

 e
x

p
e

n
se

s

9/
1/

20
17

P
ro

gr
am

 B
ud

ge
ts

 J
ul

y-
S

ep
t 2

01
7.

xl
sJ

ul
y 

17
P

re
pa

re
d 

by
 C

 B
en

so
n,

 C
FO

19



C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 B
R

ID
G

E
S

P
ro

g
ra

m
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
S

u
m

m
a

ry

J
u

ly
 3

1
, 

2
0

1
7

 

 P
R

O
G

R
A

M
 N

A
M

E
:

W
IC

B
u

d
g

et
 +

 G
A

 is
 1

7/
18

, E
xp

s/
R

ev
s 

a
re

 a
s 

o
f 9

/3
0/

17
 (

FF
Y 

16
/1

7)

C
h

il
d

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

D
iv

A
ss

u
m

in
g

 3
 n

ew
 e

n
ro

ll
m

en
ts

 in
 S

ep
t,

 R
M

 a
t 

ca
p

a
ci

ty
 D

ec

E
ld

e
rd

a
y

N
et

 s
a

vi
n

g
s 

o
n

 E
E

 w
a

iv
e 

h
ea

lt
h

, r
ed

u
ce

d
 M

ed
i-

C
a

l r
ev

en
u

e

M
e

a
ls

 o
n

 W
h

e
e

ls
R

ed
u

ce
d

 u
se

 o
f p

ri
o

r 
ye

a
r 

fu
n

d
s 

fr
o

m
 <

$9
7K

> 
B

u
d

g
et

 t
o

 <
$3

2.
7K

>

L
if

t 
L

in
e

R
ed

u
ce

d
 e

xp
ec

te
d

 5
31

0 
17

/1
8 

L
a

 M
a

n
za

n
a

 C
R

N
ew

 K
a

is
er

 r
ev

en
u

e,
 le

ss
 G

A
 o

n
 le

a
se

 c
o

st

M
o

u
n

ta
in

 C
o

m
m

ty
 R

e
s

A
p

p
ro

ve
d

 u
se

 o
f $

11
.2

K
 p

ri
o

r 
ye

a
r 

fu
n

d
s

N
u

e
v

a
 V

is
ta

 C
R

M
in

im
a

l c
h

a
n

g
e

L
iv

e
 O

a
k

 C
R

M
in

im
a

l c
h

a
n

g
e

C
A

C
F

P
N

o
 J

u
ly

 a
n

a
ly

si
s 

A
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti

o
n

B
g

t 
ca

lc
u

la
ti

o
n

 e
rr

o
r 

in
 M

O
W

 G
A

 <
$2

8K
>

P
h

il
a

n
th

ro
p

y
P

o
si

ti
o

n
 fi

ll
ed

 a
h

ea
d

 o
f b

u
d

g
et

ed

L
O

C
R

-C
a

p
 C

a
m

p
a

ig
n

S
to

ck
 v

a
lu

e 
fl

u
ct

u
a

ti
o

n
 

N
u

e
v

a
 V

is
ta

 P
ro

p
e

rt
y

G
a

in
 in

 e
q

u
it

y 
si

n
ce

 o
ri

g
in

a
l a

cq
u

is
it

io
n

 a
n

d
 m

er
g

er
 w

/C
B

F
A

s 
&

 A
g

y
 U

n
re

st
r.

 
N

ew
 L

a
M

a
 P

ro
p

er
ty

 C
o

st
s/

R
ev

en
u

es
, F

is
ca

l S
p

o
n

so
rs

h
ip

s,
 U

n
a

ll
o

w
a

b
le

 e
xp

s,
 F

ix
ed

 A
ss

et
 v

a
lu

es

9/
1/

20
17

P
ro

gr
am

 B
ud

ge
ts

 J
ul

y-
S

ep
t 2

01
7.

xl
sJ

ul
y 

17
P

re
pa

re
d 

by
 C

 B
en

so
n,

 C
FO

20



C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 B
ri

d
g

e
s

A
g

e
n

cy
-W

id
e

 R
e

v
e

n
u

e
 a

n
d

 E
x

p
e

n
se

s

J
u

ly
 3

1
, 2

0
1

7
 

R
E

C
E

IV
E

D
E

A
R

N
E

D
A

/R
U

N
E

A
R

N
E

D
A

C
T

U
A

L

D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N
YT

D
YT

D
%

 O
F

YT
D

YT
D

D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N
YT

D
%

 O
F

7/
31

/1
7

7
/3

1
/1

7
T

O
T

A
L

7
/3

1
/1

7
7

/3
1

/1
7

7
/3

1
/1

7
T

O
T

A
L

R
E

V
E

N
U

E
E

X
P

E
N

S
E

C
o

u
n

ty
 o

f S
a

n
ta

 C
ru

z
0

13
9,

37
8

9.
5%

13
9,

37
8

   
   

   
S

a
la

ri
es

 &
 W

a
g

es
52

7,
01

8
   

   
   

   
   

37
.0

%

C
it

y 
o

f S
a

n
ta

 C
ru

z
0

22
,7

50
1.

6%
22

,7
50

   
   

   
  

P
a

yr
o

ll
 T

a
xe

s
55

,3
92

   
   

   
   

   
   

3.
9%

C
it

y 
o

f C
a

p
it

o
la

0
9,

44
4

0.
6%

9,
44

4
   

   
   

   
  

H
ea

lt
h

 In
su

ra
n

ce
/R

et
ir

em
en

t
69

,9
96

   
   

   
   

   
   

4.
9%

C
it

y 
o

f S
co

tt
s 

V
a

ll
ey

0
8

3
7

0.
1%

8
3

7
   

   
   

   
   

  
C

o
n

tr
a

ct
e

d
 S

er
vi

ce
s

15
,0

24
   

   
   

   
   

   
1.

1%

C
it

y 
o

f W
a

ts
o

n
vi

lle
0

1,
37

5
0.

1%
1,

37
5

   
   

   
   

  
T

ra
n

sp
o

rt
a

ti
o

n
 S

er
vi

ce
s

34
,9

93
   

   
   

   
   

   
2.

5%

A
A

A
-T

it
le

 II
IB

/C
0

54
,4

08
3.

7%
54

,4
08

   
   

   
  

S
ta

ff
 T

ra
ve

l
2,

66
0

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

2%

U
S

D
A

-A
A

A
 /

 C
A

FB
 /

 S
L

0
41

,6
42

2.
9%

41
,6

42
   

   
   

  
O

cc
u

p
a

n
cy

 E
xp

en
se

10
0,

03
3

   
   

   
   

   
7.

0%

D
ep

t 
o

f H
ea

lt
h

 S
vc

s-
W

IC
 /

 S
n

a
p

 E
d

0
19

0,
37

1
13

.0
%

19
0,

37
1

   
   

   
O

ff
ic

e/
P

ro
g

ra
m

 E
xp

en
se

39
,8

89
   

   
   

   
   

   
2.

8%

D
ep

t 
o

f E
d

u
c-

C
A

C
FP

 A
d

m
in

0
35

,2
16

2.
4%

35
,2

16
   

   
   

  
S

ta
ff

 T
ra

in
in

g
1,

46
5

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

1%

D
ep

t 
o

f E
d

u
c-

C
A

C
FP

 H
o

m
es

 P
a

ss
th

ru
34

0,
46

2
34

0,
46

2
23

.3
%

(0
)

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
In

su
ra

n
ce

14
,3

33
   

   
   

   
   

   
1.

0%

D
ep

t 
o

f E
d

u
c-

C
A

C
FP

 C
tr

s 
C

C
C

 /
 C

B
A

S
0

11
,7

40
0.

8%
11

,7
40

   
   

   
  

T
a

xe
s,

 L
ic

en
se

s,
 In

te
re

st
 &

 F
ee

s
11

,8
45

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
8%

D
ep

t 
o

f E
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
-C

D
D

32
3,

87
5

12
0,

59
1

8.
3%

20
3,

28
4

   
   

 
E

q
u

ip
m

en
t 

E
xp

en
se

14
,8

53
   

   
   

   
   

   
1.

0%

T
ra

n
sp

o
rt

a
ti

o
n

 D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

A
ct

23
2,

72
2

55
,7

12
3.

8%
17

7,
01

0
   

   
 

R
a

w
 F

o
o

d
 a

n
d

 R
el

a
te

d
51

,5
60

   
   

   
   

   
   

3.
6%

E
FS

P
 (

FE
M

A
)

0
1,

10
8

0.
1%

1,
10

8
   

   
   

   
  

V
eh

ic
le

 O
p

er
a

ti
o

n
s/

M
a

in
te

n
a

n
ce

6,
35

4
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
4%

C
o

ve
re

d
 C

A
-N

a
vi

ga
to

r
0

1,
50

7
0.

1%
1,

50
7

   
   

   
   

  
P

a
ym

en
ts

 t
o

 C
A

C
FP

 H
o

m
es

/C
tr

s
34

0,
64

2
   

   
   

   
   

23
.9

%

FT
A

 S
ec

ti
o

n
 5

3
10

 -
 C

a
l T

ra
n

s 
V

eh
0

0
0.

0%
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

P
a

ym
en

ts
 t

o
 O

th
er

 A
ge

n
ci

es
22

,0
11

   
   

   
   

   
   

1.
5%

FT
A

 S
ec

ti
o

n
 5

3
10

 -
 C

a
l T

ra
n

s 
O

p
s

0
10

,1
67

0.
7%

10
,1

67
   

   
   

  
Fi

xe
d

 A
ss

et
 P

u
rc

h
a

se
s

5,
04

3
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
4%

Fi
rs

t 
Fi

ve
0

21
,4

69
1.

5%
21

,4
69

   
   

   
  

V
eh

ic
le

 R
el

a
te

d
 P

u
rc

h
a

se
s

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0.
0%

T
D

A
 -

 M
ea

su
re

 D
0

63
,8

46
4.

4%
63

,8
46

   
   

   
  

R
ea

l P
ro

p
er

ty
 P

u
rc

h
a

se
s

10
8,

24
3

   
   

   
   

   
7.

6%

Fo
u

n
d

a
ti

o
n

s 
&

 O
th

er
 G

ra
n

ts
4,

33
7

48
,6

79
3.

3%
44

,3
42

   
   

   
  

D
ep

re
ci

a
ti

o
n

/A
m

o
rt

iz
a

ti
o

n
-E

st
im

4,
62

1
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
3%

D
o

n
a

ti
o

n
s/

Fu
n

d
ra

is
in

g
30

,0
34

30
,0

34
2.

1%
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

P
a

rt
ic

ip
a

n
t 

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s

7,
80

0
7,

80
0

0.
5%

-
   

   
   

   
   

   

C
lie

n
t 

Fe
e

s
22

,4
00

22
,4

00
1.

5%
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

M
ed

i-
C

a
l F

ee
s

50
,5

99
14

2,
60

2
9.

8%
92

,0
02

   
   

   
  

P
ro

g
ra

m
 In

co
m

e-
O

th
er

34
,3

99
45

,2
50

3.
1%

10
,8

51
   

   
   

  

T
ra

n
sp

o
rt

a
ti

o
n

 F
ee

s/
S

cr
ip

49
3

4
9

3
0.

0%
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

O
u

ts
id

e 
C

o
n

tr
a

ct
s

0
7,

97
0

0.
5%

7,
97

0
   

   
   

   
  

U
n

co
ll

ec
ti

b
le

 R
ev

en
u

e
0

0
0.

0%
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

In
te

rp
ro

g
ra

m
 R

ev
en

u
e

33
,7

67
33

,7
67

2.
3%

-
   

   
   

   
   

   

T
O

T
A

L 
R

E
V

E
N

U
E

1,
08

0,
88

7
1,

46
1,

01
7

10
0.

0%
76

0,
42

3
38

0,
29

4
T

O
T

A
L 

E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

S
1,

42
5,

97
6

   
   

   
   

10
0.

0%

N
e

t 
G

a
in

 (
L

o
ss

) 
3

5
,0

4
1

   
   

   
   

   
  

E
st

im
a

te
d

 P
ri

o
r 

Yr
 R

es
er

ve
s

2,
63

6,
12

9
   

   
   

   

C
h

a
n

g
e 

fr
o

m
 la

st
 m

o
n

th
0

N
e

t 
A

ss
e

ts
:

2
,6

7
1

,1
7

0
   

   
   

 

9/
1/

20
17

 6
:5

0 
PM

Bd
 F

in
an

ci
al

s 
Ju

ly
 1

7.
xl

s
Pr

ep
ar

ed
 b

y 
C

at
hy

 B
en

so
n

21



C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 B
R

ID
G

E
S

P
ro

g
ra

m
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
S

u
m

m
a

ry
 

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 B
R

ID
G

E
S

A
u

g
u

st
 3

1
, 

2
0

1
7

 
P

ro
g

ra
m

 B
u

d
g

e
t 

S
u

m
m

a
ry

P
ro

je
ct

io
n

s 
fo

r 
Y

e
a

r 
E

n
d

in
g

 6
-3

0
-1

8
A

u
g

u
st

 3
1

, 
2

0
1

7
 

A
 

B
 

C
D

E
F

G
H

I
J

K

A
n

n
u

a
l

 
 

(E
-D

)
(B

+G
)

6/
30

/1
7

17
/1

8
C

u
rr

en
t

C
u

rr
en

t
A

s 
Ye

t
N

et
G

o
a

l 2
5%

C
h

a
n

g
e

14
.5

%

U
n

a
u

d
it

ed
B

a
la

n
ce

d
P

ro
je

ct
ed

P
ro

je
ct

ed
U

n
se

cu
re

d
20

17
-2

01
8

C
u

m
u

la
ti

ve
R

es
er

ve
fr

o
m

G
en

'l
 &

P
R

O
G

R
A

M
 N

A
M

E
:

B
a

la
n

ce
B

u
d

g
et

E
xp

en
se

s
R

ev
en

u
es

R
ev

en
u

es
G

a
in

/L
o

ss
G

a
in

/L
o

ss
%

P
ri

o
r 

M
o

A
d

m
 E

xp

W
IC

   
(O

ct
-S

e
p

t 
F

F
Y

)
17

0,
88

5
   

   
   

2,
45

0,
31

7
   

   
 

2,
37

4,
17

7
2,

38
4,

76
3

2,
87

2
10

,5
86

   
   

   
  

18
1,

47
1

   
   

   
7.

7%
42

   
   

   
   

   
 

28
6,

16
1

   
   

   

C
h

il
d

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

D
iv

28
,5

61
   

   
   

  
2,

18
5,

16
0

   
   

 
2,

07
6,

39
0

2,
12

7,
69

9
27

1,
17

4
51

,3
09

   
   

   
  

79
,8

70
   

   
   

  
3.

9%
27

,9
89

   
   

  
30

2,
09

4

E
ld

e
rd

a
y

(1
00

,2
40

)
   

   
 

1,
99

5,
51

6
   

   
 

1,
98

6,
69

2
1,

97
8,

39
8

17
4,

26
7

(8
,2

94
)

   
   

   
   

(1
08

,5
34

)
   

   
 

-5
.5

%
(1

3,
90

5)
   

   
28

7,
86

2

M
e

a
ls

 o
n

 W
h

e
e

ls
55

6,
69

4
   

   
   

1,
76

2,
03

7
   

   
 

1,
70

8,
01

7
1,

68
2,

22
9

24
9,

78
8

(2
5,

78
8)

   
   

   
 

53
0,

90
6

   
   

   
33

.0
%

6,
90

7
   

   
   

 
23

1,
67

6

L
if

t 
L

in
e

(1
47

,4
98

)
   

   
 

2,
72

3,
07

2
   

   
 

2,
94

8,
76

9
2,

88
9,

38
8

90
,0

77
(5

9,
38

1)
   

   
   

 
(2

06
,8

79
)

   
   

 
-8

.0
%

(3
3,

50
6)

   
   

21
8,

00
9

L
a

 M
a

n
za

n
a

 C
o

m
m

ty
 R

e
s

95
,1

81
   

   
   

  
66

3,
29

2
   

   
   

  
66

0,
09

2
67

2,
13

5
8,

85
5

12
,0

43
   

   
   

  
10

7,
22

4
   

   
   

16
.6

%
4,

03
0

   
   

   
 

87
,3

52

M
o

u
n

ta
in

 C
o

m
m

ty
 R

e
s

18
7,

43
8

   
   

   
36

1,
78

2
   

   
   

  
36

6,
73

6
36

4,
00

4
43

,2
69

(2
,7

32
)

   
   

   
   

18
4,

70
6

   
   

   
51

.8
%

8,
56

1
   

   
   

 
51

,6
54

N
u

e
v

a
 V

is
ta

 C
o

m
m

ty
 R

e
s

54
,2

81
   

   
   

  
34

9,
81

0
   

   
   

  
33

2,
48

6
34

9,
52

1
15

,2
73

17
,0

35
   

   
   

  
71

,3
16

   
   

   
  

21
.7

%
14

,7
46

   
   

  
46

,1
46

L
iv

e
 O

a
k

 C
o

m
m

ty
 R

e
s

11
3,

79
9

   
   

   
28

9,
18

5
   

   
   

  
30

1,
69

0
29

7,
40

6
18

,5
34

(4
,2

84
)

   
   

   
   

10
9,

51
5

   
   

   
36

.3
%

(5
,6

34
)

   
   

   
43

,7
45

C
A

C
F

P
   

(O
ct

-S
e

p
t 

F
F

Y
)

17
,4

61
   

   
   

  
3,

73
2,

69
0

   
   

 
3,

93
0,

00
7

3,
94

7,
99

5
0

17
,9

88
   

   
   

  
35

,4
49

   
   

   
  

8.
6%

5,
02

8
   

   
   

 
32

,4
15

A
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti

o
n

18
,9

46
   

   
   

  
1,

67
7,

78
5

   
   

 
1,

67
3,

70
1

   
   

 
1,

64
5,

52
3

6,
00

0
(2

8,
17

8)
   

   
   

 
(9

,2
32

)
   

   
   

   
-0

.6
%

6,
44

1
   

   
   

 
2,

40
2

P
h

il
a

n
th

ro
p

y
61

,0
18

   
   

   
  

15
0,

64
5

   
   

   
  

15
2,

91
3

15
3,

03
9

66
,6

97
12

6
   

   
   

   
   

   
61

,1
44

   
   

   
  

40
.0

%
2,

50
8

   
   

   
 

21
,8

44
T

O
T

A
L

 P
R

O
G

 O
P

E
R

A
T

IO
N

S
1

,0
5

6
,5

2
7

   
1

8
,3

4
1

,2
9

1
  

1
8

,5
1

1
,6

7
0

  
1

8
,4

9
2

,1
0

0
  

9
4

6
,8

0
6

   
   

(1
9

,5
7

0
)

   
   

  
1

,0
3

6
,9

5
7

   
7

.3
6

%
2

3
,2

0
7

   
   

1
,6

1
1

,3
6

0

L
O

C
R

-C
a

p
it

a
l C

a
m

p
a

ig
n

39
9,

75
0

   
   

   
47

,0
97

   
   

   
   

  
23

,0
76

43
,2

40
0

20
,1

64
   

   
   

  
41

9,
91

4
   

   
   

N
A

70
2

   
   

   
   

  
58

8

5
2

1
 M

a
in

 P
ro

p
e

rt
y

 A
ct

iv
it

y
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

48
,3

35
   

   
   

   
  

33
,1

36
0

(1
5,

20
0)

   
   

   
 

(1
5,

20
0)

   
   

   
 

N
A

-
   

   
   

   
   

7,
00

9

N
u

e
v

a
 V

is
ta

 P
ro

p
. 

E
q

u
it

y
20

0,
69

4
   

   
   

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0
0

0
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

20
0,

69
4

   
   

   
N

A
-

   
   

   
   

   
0

F
ix

e
d

 A
ss

e
ts

 &
 G

e
n

'l
 A

g
y

97
9,

15
8

   
   

   
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
59

6
4,

23
7

0
3,

64
1

   
   

   
   

  
98

2,
79

9
   

   
   

N
A

-
   

   
   

   
   

0
T

O
T

A
L

 A
G

E
N

C
Y

2
,6

3
6

,1
2

9
   

1
8

,3
8

8
,3

8
8

  
1

8
,5

8
3

,6
7

8
  

1
8

,5
7

2
,7

1
4

  
9

4
6

,8
0

6
   

   
(1

0
,9

6
4

)
   

   
  

2
,6

2
5

,1
6

5
   

7
.3

6
%

2
3

,9
0

9
   

   
1

,6
1

8
,9

5
6

   

   
  N

o
te

: 
 M

O
W

 :
 $

3
5

0
,0

0
0

 o
f 

M
O

W
 E

n
d

o
w

m
e

n
t 

re
v

e
n

u
e

 s
h

o
w

n
 o

n
 F

ix
e

d
 A

ss
e

ts
 &

 G
e

n
e

ra
l A

g
e

n
cy

 6
/3

0
/1

7
 F

u
n

d
 B

a
la

n
ce

.

   
  N

o
te

: 
 L

L
 :

 $
2

5
0

,0
0

0
 o

f 
p

ri
o

r 
y

e
a

r 
L

L
 lo

ss
e

s 
in

cl
u

d
e

d
 in

 F
ix

e
d

 A
ss

e
ts

 &
 G

e
n

e
ra

l A
g

e
n

cy
 F

u
n

d
 B

a
la

n
ce

.

   
  N

o
te

: 
F

a
m

il
ia

 P
ro

p
e

rt
y

 V
a

lu
e

 o
f 

$
2

0
0

,6
9

4
 m

o
v

e
d

 t
o

 E
q

u
it

y
 f

ro
m

 I
n

co
m

e
.

   
  *

* 
 F

ix
e

d
 A

ss
e

t 
p

u
rc

h
a

se
s 

a
n

d
 P

a
ss

-T
h

ru
 e

x
p

e
n

se
s 

e
x

e
m

p
t;

 A
d

m
in

 P
ro

g
ra

m
 r

e
st

ri
ct

e
d

 t
o

 5
%

 g
a

in
 d

u
e

 t
o

 F
e

d
e

ra
l r

e
st

ri
ct

io
n

s 
o

n
 in

d
ir

e
ct

 e
x

p
e

n
se

s

10
/3

/2
01

7
P

ro
gr

am
 B

ud
ge

ts
 J

ul
y-

S
ep

t 2
01

7.
xl

sA
ug

 1
7

P
re

pa
re

d 
by

 C
 B

en
so

n,
 C

FO

22



C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 B
R

ID
G

E
S

P
ro

g
ra

m
 B

u
d

g
e

t 
S

u
m

m
a

ry

A
u

g
u

st
 3

1
, 

2
0

1
7

 

 P
R

O
G

R
A

M
 N

A
M

E
:

W
IC

M
in

im
a

l c
h

a
n

g
e

C
h

il
d

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

D
iv

A
ss

u
m

in
g

 fu
ll

 c
a

p
a

ci
ty

 N
D

 in
 D

ec
, 3

 n
ew

 a
t 

H
P

 N
o

v,
 R

M
 a

t 
ca

p
a

ci
ty

 D
ec

E
ld

e
rd

a
y

N
ew

 h
ir

e 
w

it
h

 h
ea

lt
h

 +
$9

K
, d

ro
p

 in
 A

D
A

 <
$7

K
>

M
e

a
ls

 o
n

 W
h

e
e

ls
R

ed
u

ct
io

n
s 

in
 p

er
so

n
n

el
 a

n
d

 fo
o

d
 e

xp
en

se
s

L
if

t 
L

in
e

M
ea

su
re

 D
 Q

tr
 1

 r
ed

u
ct

io
n

 <
$5

0K
>

L
a

 M
a

n
za

n
a

 C
R

N
ew

 L
is

te
n

 fo
r 

G
o

o
d

 G
ra

n
t 

$5
K

, C
A

 N
a

v 
$3

.8
K

, s
h

if
t 

P
P

P
 <

$3
K

>

M
o

u
n

ta
in

 C
o

m
m

ty
 R

e
s

N
ew

 L
is

te
n

 fo
r 

G
o

o
d

 G
ra

n
t 

$5
K

, C
A

 N
a

v 
$3

.8
K

, s
h

if
t 

P
P

P
 +

$3
K

N
u

e
v

a
 V

is
ta

 C
R

N
ew

 L
is

te
n

 fo
r 

G
o

o
d

 G
ra

n
t 

$5
K

, C
A

 N
a

v 
$3

.4
K

, S
n

a
p

E
d

 $
6.

5K

L
iv

e
 O

a
k

 C
R

S
ta

ff
in

g
 c

h
a

n
g

es
 +

$1
4K

, n
ew

 g
ra

n
ts

 +
$8

K

C
A

C
F

P
G

en
er

a
l r

ed
u

ct
io

n
 in

 p
ro

je
ct

ed
 e

xp
en

se
s 

a
t 

en
d

 o
f F

FY
 c

o
n

tr
a

ct

A
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti

o
n

N
ew

 L
is

te
n

 fo
r 

G
o

o
d

 G
ra

n
t 

$1
0K

P
h

il
a

n
th

ro
p

y
Fa

rm
2F

o
rk

 r
ed

u
ce

d
 c

o
st

s

L
O

C
R

-C
a

p
 C

a
m

p
a

ig
n

S
to

ck
 v

a
lu

e 
fl

u
ct

u
a

ti
o

n
 

L
a

 M
a

n
za

n
a

 P
ro

p
e

rt
y

C
u

rr
 Y

T
D

 a
ct

iv
it

y 
o

n
ly

 s
h

o
w

n
-n

o
t 

a
n

n
u

a
li

ze
d

N
u

e
v

a
 V

is
ta

 P
ro

p
e

rt
y

G
a

in
 in

 e
q

u
it

y 
si

n
ce

 o
ri

g
in

a
l a

cq
u

is
it

io
n

 a
n

d
 m

er
g

er
 w

/C
B

F
A

s 
&

 A
g

y
 U

n
re

st
r.

 
Fi

sc
a

l S
p

o
n

so
rs

h
ip

s,
 U

n
a

ll
o

w
a

b
le

 e
xp

s,
 F

ix
ed

 A
ss

et
 v

a
lu

es

10
/3

/2
01

7
P

ro
gr

am
 B

ud
ge

ts
 J

ul
y-

S
ep

t 2
01

7.
xl

sA
ug

 1
7

P
re

pa
re

d 
by

 C
 B

en
so

n,
 C

FO

23



C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y

 B
ri

d
g

e
s

A
g

e
n

cy
-W

id
e

 R
e

v
e

n
u

e
 a

n
d

 E
x

p
e

n
se

s

A
u

g
u

st
 3

1
, 2

0
1

7
 

R
E

C
E

IV
E

D
E

A
R

N
E

D
A

/R
U

N
E

A
R

N
E

D
A

C
T

U
A

L

D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N
YT

D
YT

D
%

 O
F

YT
D

YT
D

D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N
YT

D
%

 O
F

8/
31

/1
7

8
/3

1
/1

7
T

O
T

A
L

8
/3

1
/1

7
8

/3
1

/1
7

8
/3

1
/1

7
T

O
T

A
L

R
E

V
E

N
U

E
E

X
P

E
N

S
E

C
o

u
n

ty
 o

f S
a

n
ta

 C
ru

z
98

,0
00

25
0,

04
4

8.
4%

15
2,

04
4

   
   

   
S

a
la

ri
es

 &
 W

a
g

es
1,

12
1,

71
1

   
   

   
   

38
.3

%

C
it

y 
o

f S
a

n
ta

 C
ru

z
0

45
,5

00
1.

5%
45

,5
00

   
   

   
  

P
a

yr
o

ll
 T

a
xe

s
11

7,
70

5
   

   
   

   
   

4.
0%

C
it

y 
o

f C
a

p
it

o
la

0
18

,8
87

0.
6%

18
,8

87
   

   
   

  
H

ea
lt

h
 In

su
ra

n
ce

/R
et

ir
em

en
t

13
9,

28
4

   
   

   
   

   
4.

8%

C
it

y 
o

f S
co

tt
s 

V
a

ll
ey

0
1,

67
4

0.
1%

1,
67

4
   

   
   

   
  

C
o

n
tr

a
ct

e
d

 S
er

vi
ce

s
50

,4
72

   
   

   
   

   
   

1.
7%

C
it

y 
o

f W
a

ts
o

n
vi

lle
8,

25
0

2,
75

0
0.

1%
5,

50
0

   
   

   
   

T
ra

n
sp

o
rt

a
ti

o
n

 S
er

vi
ce

s
57

,9
35

   
   

   
   

   
   

2.
0%

A
A

A
-T

it
le

 II
IB

/C
0

10
8,

67
7

3.
7%

10
8,

67
7

   
   

   
S

ta
ff

 T
ra

ve
l

6,
41

0
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
2%

U
S

D
A

-A
A

A
 /

 C
A

FB
 /

 S
L

0
83

,2
84

2.
8%

83
,2

84
   

   
   

  
O

cc
u

p
a

n
cy

 E
xp

en
se

19
3,

04
9

   
   

   
   

   
6.

6%

D
ep

t 
o

f H
ea

lt
h

 S
vc

s-
W

IC
 /

 S
n

a
p

 E
d

0
42

2,
91

5
14

.3
%

42
2,

91
5

   
   

   
O

ff
ic

e/
P

ro
g

ra
m

 E
xp

en
se

98
,3

34
   

   
   

   
   

   
3.

4%

D
ep

t 
o

f E
d

u
c-

C
A

C
FP

 A
d

m
in

0
68

,2
19

2.
3%

68
,2

19
   

   
   

  
S

ta
ff

 T
ra

in
in

g
7,

69
8

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

3%

D
ep

t 
o

f E
d

u
c-

C
A

C
FP

 H
o

m
es

 P
a

ss
th

ru
70

6,
92

9
70

6,
92

9
23

.8
%

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
In

su
ra

n
ce

28
,6

67
   

   
   

   
   

   
1.

0%

D
ep

t 
o

f E
d

u
c-

C
A

C
FP

 C
tr

s 
C

C
C

 /
 C

B
A

S
0

23
,4

80
0.

8%
23

,4
80

   
   

   
  

T
a

xe
s,

 L
ic

en
se

s,
 In

te
re

st
 &

 F
ee

s
25

,6
33

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
9%

D
ep

t 
o

f E
d

u
ca

ti
o

n
-C

D
D

32
3,

87
5

24
4,

09
9

8.
2%

79
,7

76
   

   
   

 
E

q
u

ip
m

en
t 

E
xp

en
se

31
,3

49
   

   
   

   
   

   
1.

1%

T
ra

n
sp

o
rt

a
ti

o
n

 D
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t 

A
ct

23
2,

72
2

11
1,

42
4

3.
8%

12
1,

29
8

   
   

 
R

a
w

 F
o

o
d

 a
n

d
 R

el
a

te
d

12
0,

16
8

   
   

   
   

   
4.

1%

E
FS

P
 (

FE
M

A
)

0
2,

21
6

0.
1%

2,
21

6
   

   
   

   
  

V
eh

ic
le

 O
p

er
a

ti
o

n
s/

M
a

in
te

n
a

n
ce

20
,8

80
   

   
   

   
   

   
0.

7%

C
o

ve
re

d
 C

A
-N

a
vi

ga
to

r
0

0
0.

0%
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

P
a

ym
en

ts
 t

o
 C

A
C

FP
 H

o
m

es
/C

tr
s

70
7,

10
8

   
   

   
   

   
24

.2
%

FT
A

 S
ec

ti
o

n
 5

3
10

 -
 C

a
l T

ra
n

s 
V

eh
0

0
0.

0%
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

P
a

ym
en

ts
 t

o
 O

th
er

 A
ge

n
ci

es
25

,5
65

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
9%

FT
A

 S
ec

ti
o

n
 5

3
10

 -
 C

a
l T

ra
n

s 
O

p
s

0
20

,3
33

0.
7%

20
,3

33
   

   
   

  
Fi

xe
d

 A
ss

et
 P

u
rc

h
a

se
s

5,
34

4
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
2%

Fi
rs

t 
Fi

ve
64

,4
08

42
,9

39
1.

4%
21

,4
70

   
   

   
 

V
eh

ic
le

 R
el

a
te

d
 P

u
rc

h
a

se
s

2,
89

2
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0.
1%

T
D

A
 -

 M
ea

su
re

 D
0

11
8,

72
0

4.
0%

11
8,

72
0

   
   

   
R

ea
l P

ro
p

er
ty

 P
u

rc
h

a
se

s
15

6,
43

3
   

   
   

   
   

5.
3%

C
a

 A
ir

 R
es

o
u

rc
es

 B
o

a
rd

 (
C

A
R

B
)

0
0

0.
0%

-
   

   
   

   
   

   
D

ep
re

ci
a

ti
o

n
/A

m
o

rt
iz

a
ti

o
n

-E
st

im
8,

48
6

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0.

3%

Fo
u

n
d

a
ti

o
n

s 
&

 O
th

er
 G

ra
n

ts
60

,0
37

78
,3

17
2.

6%
18

,2
80

   
   

   
  

D
o

n
a

ti
o

n
s/

Fu
n

d
ra

is
in

g
82

,9
02

82
,9

02
2.

8%
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

P
a

rt
ic

ip
a

n
t 

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s

15
,6

93
15

,6
93

0.
5%

-
   

   
   

   
   

   

C
lie

n
t 

Fe
e

s
63

,7
93

63
,7

93
2.

2%
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

M
ed

i-
C

a
l F

ee
s

16
6,

04
3

28
1,

66
6

9.
5%

11
5,

62
3

   
   

   

P
ro

g
ra

m
 In

co
m

e-
O

th
er

62
,2

77
83

,9
79

2.
8%

21
,7

02
   

   
   

  

T
ra

n
sp

o
rt

a
ti

o
n

 F
ee

s/
S

cr
ip

1,
73

3
1,

73
3

0.
1%

-
   

   
   

   
   

   

O
u

ts
id

e 
C

o
n

tr
a

ct
s

90
0

15
,9

40
0.

5%
15

,0
40

   
   

   
  

U
n

co
ll

ec
ti

b
le

 R
ev

en
u

e
0

0
0.

0%
-

   
   

   
   

   
   

In
te

rp
ro

g
ra

m
 R

ev
en

u
e

70
,7

10
70

,7
10

2.
4%

-
   

   
   

   
   

   

T
O

T
A

L 
R

E
V

E
N

U
E

1,
95

8,
27

2
2,

96
6,

82
5

10
0.

0%
1,

23
6,

59
6

22
8,

04
3

T
O

T
A

L 
E

X
P

E
N

D
IT

U
R

E
S

2,
92

5,
12

1
   

   
   

   
10

0.
0%

N
e

t 
G

a
in

 (
L

o
ss

) 
4

1
,7

0
3

   
   

   
   

   
  

E
st

im
a

te
d

 P
ri

o
r 

Yr
 R

es
er

ve
s

2,
63

6,
12

9
   

   
   

   

C
h

a
n

g
e 

fr
o

m
 la

st
 m

o
n

th
6,

66
2

N
e

t 
A

ss
e

ts
:

2
,6

7
7

,8
3

2
   

   
   

 

10
/3

/2
01

7 
5:

27
 P

M
Bd

 F
in

an
ci

al
s 

Au
g 

17
.x

ls
Pr

ep
ar

ed
 b

y 
C

at
hy

 B
en

so
n

24



A. Revenue from Individuals & Businesses: donations, auction items, sponsorships & tickets (Excludes unreceived pledges)
Fiscal Year July Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Total

Current Year 
17/18

76,816 52,607 17,838 147,260

September 30, 2017

Development Progress Report
m

ou
nt

 o
f 

na
tio

ns
   Fiscal Year 2017-18

17/18
Previous Year 

16/17
63,262 9,211 13,174 26,907 117,015 117,461 37,187 58,788 21,255 34,720 46,761 22,081 567,821

Difference 9/30/16 compared to 9/30/17 $61,614

To
ta

l a
m

al
l d

o

17/18 l ti
160,000

Current Year 17/18

Previous Year 16/17

17/18 cumulative 
$147,260

16/17 cumulative
$85,646

0

20,000

40,000

60,000

80,000

100,000

120,000

140,000

B. Grants from Foundations:
We've received the following grants so far this fiscal year (not included in the above numbers):

150,000$ from Sunlight Giving for Community Bridges
50,000$    from Community Foundation Santa Cruz County
40,000$    from Monterey Peninsula Foundation for Lift Line40,000$    from Monterey Peninsula Foundation for Lift Line
30,000$    from Rockefeller Foundation for Listen for Good project

270,000$ 

Pending Grants:

We've applied for the following grants so far for this fiscal year:
402,926$ from Dept of Transportation for Lift Line equipment updates
268,219$ from CA Air Resources (CARB) for Lift Line electric vehicles

$ f f i f if i i f d198,000$ from Dept of Transportation for Lift Line operating funds
20,000$    from Harden Foundation for electric vehicle charging station

5,000$      from Nicholson Foundation for NVCR Summer Fun! Program
894,145$ 

Upcoming Grants:

We plan to apply for the following grants during this fiscal year:
660,000$ from Regional Transportation Commission for Lift Line TDA claim,$ from Regional Transportation Commission for Lift Line TDA claim

50,000$    from Monterey Peninsula Foundation for Community Bridges
12,000$    from Community Foundation Monterey County for LMCR

4,000$      from Dudley-Vehmeyer-Brown Foundation for MCR
726,000$ 

C. Event Summary
• Farm to Fork sponsorships increased from $8,000 in 16/17 to $12,500 in 17/18.

• MCR Mountain Affair auction sold out at 108 tickets raising more than $21,500, gross.
• Farm to Fork net increase 24% over 2016. Revenue up 10%, expenses down 6%.

25



30%
%YTD

Programs 17/18 Goal Year To Date Goal met %
CB General Funds $125,500 $72,455 58%
Child and Adult Care FP $3,550 $750 21%
Child Development Dept $6,500 $1,775 27%
Elderday $14,500 $1,108 8%
La Manzana CR $2,000 $500 25%
Lift Line $19,100 $3,901 20%
Live Oak CR $18,000 $20,880 116%
Mountain Community R. $48,000 $21,462 45%
Meals on Wheels $238,002 $21,905 9%
Nueva Vista CR $12,800 $1,951 15%
WIC $2,000 $573 29%

TOTAL $489,952 $147,260 30%

.
Appeals Jul '17 Aug '17 Sept '17 Total

Annual Report 2016 895                                          5,130                            535                                6,560         
Board donation to CB 135                                          385                                185                                705            
Calendar Sponsor 2018 500                                          250                                3,000                            3,750         
CB Childrens Mailer 2017 426                                          20                                   446            
Donates Monthly 989                                          854                                854                                2,697         
Donor Advised Grant 1,000                            1,000         
Farm to Fork Gala 2017 28,105                                    37,949                          250                                66,304      
Founding 100 Endowment 135                                          135                                135                                406            
Friends of MOW Membershi 250                                          200                                450            
General Donation 1718 710                                          470                                700                                1,880         
Grocery Bag Tokens 279                                279            
Living Trust 491                                491            
LL Client Survey 17 380                                86                                   466            
LL Van Sponsorship 360                                          360                                1,810                            2,530         
Major Gifts 40,000                                    40,000      
MCR Mountain Affair 2017 1,350                            6,250                            7,600         
MCR PAT 2017 26                                            6                                     6                                     38               
Memorial Donation 100                                          20                                   120            
MOW welcome packet 696                                          546                                506                                1,748         
MOW Spring Mailer 2017 2,653                                      1,218                            1,435                            5,306         
MOW meal contribution 284                                          766                                587                                1,636         
Online donation/search 80                                   80               
Outside Fundraiser 346                                346            
Payroll Deduction: Employe 327                                          327                                327                                981            
Payroll Funds - non-CB 15                                            375                                15                                   405            
Program Donation Box 10                                            10                                   40                                   60               
Redwood Mountain Faire 777                                777            
Roots & Wings 200                                          200            

Total 76,816                                  52,607                         17,838                         147,260  

 Progress Report 
2017 – 2018

Fundrasing Goals & Allocations

September 30, 2017

2017-18 Appeal Results
September 30, 2017

Individuals, Business, Donations, Sponsorships, Events Revenue

26



PROGRAM REPORT to BOARD of DIRECTORS

Fiscal Calendar Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep YTD

Current Year 

16/17 209,486 163,941 136,011 128,322 132,509 168,820 163,073 213,743 228,675 206,106 207,712* 1,750,686

Previous Year 

15/16
211,216 143,278 132,567 119,790 134,297 157,925 158,194 193,234 218,340 204,087 235,017 213,120 2,121,065

*August 2017 claim month has not been closed out, therefore actual number of meals is not reflected 

B. 2016-2017 Volunteers Report:

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep YTD

1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 2 13

0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 3

8 7 14 9 6 6 7 7 7 6 9 86

C. Accomplishments:  

1) 2016-17 program year ended

2) Met all program requirements and deadlines for 2016-17

3) Early implementation of New Pattern Pattern 

D. Challenges: 

1) Managing multiple deadlines and priorities without full staff

2) Recruiting for limited term program consultant position

3) Lead Program Consultant still out on maternity leave

4) Implementing New Meal Pattern requirements 

# of Unduplicated 

Volunteers

# of Volunteered Hours

Program Name:  Child & Adult Care Food Program

Date of Board Meeting: October 2017

A. Services: The CACFP child care component is a state and federally funded nutrition assistance program designed to provide healthful 

meals to children and adult receiving day care. Along with improving the diets of the participants through nutritious well-balanced meals 

CACFP also provides on going up-to-date nutrition, health, and safety education materials.

T
o

ta
l #

 o
f 

a
ll

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s

Fiscal Calendar (16-17)

# of Duplicated 

Volunteers

0

50,000

100,000

150,000

200,000

250,000

T
o

ta
l N

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
A

ll
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s

Fiscal Calendar

Total Services 

Month to Month

Current Year 16/17

Previous Year 15/16

0

500,000

1,000,000

1,500,000

2,000,000

2,500,000

Current Year 16/17

T
o

ta
l N

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
A

ll
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s

Total Services YTD

27



PROGRAM REPORT to BOARD of DIRECTORS

Report by Centers

CDDs

Fiscal Calendar July Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun YTD

Current Year 

16/17 5481 5951 5534 5684 5275 4307 3704 5008 6191 5466 6398 5917 64,916

Previous Year 

15/16
5966 5909 6200 6667 5409 3840 5163 5928 6398 6237 6235 6271 70,223

At-Risk Site

Fiscal Calendar Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May YTD
Current Year 

16/17 176 318 247 132 147 151 173 111 146 1601
Previous Year 

15/16
241 1189 923 882 851 863 1110 869 918 7,846

Elderday

Fiscal Calendar July Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun YTD

Current Year 

16/17 2469 2971 2991 2818 2784 2572 2179 2474 2962 2666 2907 3098 32891
Previous Year 

15/16
2890 2709 2490 2710 2131 2503 1798 2321 2628 2437 2471 2898 29,986               

Accomplishments:

1) New Program Coordinator to operate 4 CDDs and At-Risk 

 to better streamline claims processing 
2) Annual Center's training completed

3) Implementation of New Meal Pattern

 
Challenges:

1) New Meal Pattern

2) Lower # of meals reimbursed for At-Risk Site due to loss of Boys

   and Girls Club contract

3) New Program Coordinator position covering for Program

   Consultant postion 
4) Redwood Mnt. still closed

CDDs include: Fairgrounds, Nuevo Dia, Redwood Mountain, Sycamore Street & Vista Verde centers.

At-Risk Site only operate October—May. 

Program Name:  Child & Adult Care Food Program

Date of Board Meeting: October 2017

Total meals 

reimbursed

Total meals 

reimbursed

Total meals 

reimbursed

0

1000

2000

3000

4000

5000

6000

7000

8000

Ju
ly

A
u

g

Se
p

O
ct

N
o

v

D
ec Ja
n

Fe
b

M
ar

A
p

r

M
ay Ju

n

To
ta

l m
ea

ls
 s

er
ve

d

CDDs

Current
Year 16/17

Previous
Year 15/16

250

450

650

850

1050

1250
O

ct

N
o

v

D
ec Ja
n

Fe
b

M
ar

A
p

r

M
ay

To
ta

l m
ea

ls
 s

er
ve

d

At-Risk Site

Current
Year 16/17

Previous
Year 15/16

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

3500

Ju
ly

A
u

g

Se
p

O
ct

N
o

v

D
ec Ja
n

Fe
b

M
ar

A
p

r

M
ay Ju

n

To
ta

l m
ea

ls
 s

er
ve

d

Elderday

Current
Year 16/17

Previous
Year 15/16

28



PROGRAM REPORT to BOARD of DIRECTORS

A. Services:  Service Units represent total number of service days provided to duplicated participants.

Fiscal Calendar July Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun YTD

Current Year 

17/18
1399 1537 1370 4,306

Average Daily 

Attendance
69.95 66.83 68.50 68.43

Previous Year 

16/17
1,313 1,549 1,522 1,517 1,427 1,300 1,158 1,287 1,515 1,362 1,497 1,615 17,062

2016-2017 Volunteers Report:

July Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun YTD

87 123 45

26 24 22

192 197 110

 

B. Accomplishments:  

C. Challenges:  

• We continue to carefully monitor healthcare legislation at the federal level as significant cuts to the ACA could be 

devastating to CCAH and Elderday.

• Maintaining daily attendance continues to be a challenge, as does retaining staff due to low pay rates. 

- Initiating two new programs (one for fall reduction and one for depression reduction) to meet county CORE 

requirements, with the same funding and same staffing, is challenging.

• Having just hired a new program assistant, we are fully staffed at this time. 

• Elderday continues to enhance our daily activities. Our participants art works, made during art therapy, have been 

mounted and are displayed in a First Friday exhibit at Mandala Salon in Santa Cruz for the month of October.

- New volunteer coordinator has more than doubled volunteer hours from 2014/15 (848 hours) to 2016/17 (2,170 hrs)

- Work with TurboTar to move more toward electronic record-keeping is complete and a number of processes have been 

streamlined and are being produced electronically.

T
ot

al
 n

um
be

r 
of

 a
ll 

se
rv

ic
es

Program Name: Elderday

Date of Board Meeting: 10/18/17

Fiscal Calendar (17-18)

Number of Duplicated 

Volunteers

Number of Volunteered 

Hours

Number of Unduplicated 

Volunteers

0

200

400

600

800

1000

1200

1400

1600

1800

2000

T
o

ta
l 
N

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

A
ll
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

Fiscal Calendar

Total Services 
Month to Month

Current Year 17/18

Average Daily Attendance

Previous Year 16/17

1,000

2,000

3,000

4,000

5,000

6,000

7,000

8,000

9,000

10,000

11,000

12,000

13,000

14,000

15,000

16,000

17,000

18,000

19,000

20,000

Current Year 17/18    Previous Year 16/17

T
o

ta
l 

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

A
ll

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

Total Services YTD

29



���������� ���	
������	��������	�������	������	���������������	���������������	������������������	�����	����	���
��

 ���!����"�#����#������������$�%��& ������# �$
 ��'

����������	����"������	���	
������	��������	�������	������	���������������	��������������	������������������	�����	����	���
�������	�����	����	� �	���	���	���"�� ���$$�������	�����������������	����������	����	���	����������(����	�	�"���������$������������	�������������)�����	��*������+��,����-�	�.���
��
/�������-�����	�	���������������	����	� �	� �
���������������	�����-�������	����	�����������	���������#�01 ���������	�
���2��������#3

�����
����	�-����	�.�	��$�4	�����	������ �	��

������������.�5����	����&
����	���-�� �����1
����2�%��6�$���	�7��������"��������������$�
�������
���	���--�	��� ������������������������ ������
������������	�������� �$�������#�01 ��������	�
���2��������#3
����	�	��������6�	$���1���

������5�	���.������

���	
������	������-�	����	����	����������������	������������	�������	������	��������-����������������$�	��� ���'���	�����-�� ��	�����$�����	�����������
�����������	��������	�
�$���	��	���
����-����	�����-�������	����	����	����� �������������������������������	��#8 ����	�����
���-������ ����������-��	�	����	������������ ��%�������	������-�� ��	�����$�����	�����������
�����#�8 ���$�������
�����&� �	���-�� ����
��"����
%���������
�����������	���������������������������������.�5��������������	�-����	�-������
�����������������	����" ����&
���� ��	�7����"�� ������
���1	�-����	�.�	��$�4	�����	�#��6����������� ����$��	&�������������������	���������������"�� �������-����"�������	�
������ ����	���	����	���	�����	�������#�9����	���
���-���������-������� �

������"�� ����	�	�"�������������������-�	����$����������$�7�	�$������������� ����	����	����
��#:��������
�-�����������
���!�����;�����	������-�	�������������	���������	�	�"������"�� �$�	�� ����"����
����������������	��$<��-�������$�� � �� �	�� ���--����
�������������.�5��������#�����;�)-�	����	��" ��$��������� ��
����-�������	���=���	����������� �$����"����-�	�����	�����
����	����$�����-���������������������	���	������	����#�����;�=���	����������� ��� ������	����������
���������$�7�		��
�$�"�� �� ��	�	����
��"�� �$������������������	�

������������-� �������� ��$������$$��
��������	��
�$�#.�5����4	�����	������� ��	����$�"�

�	������� ��	�	���
�����	���������8 �	������)�����	��*������ ���������	��������:�����	��$#�8 ���������" �� �%��%���--� �������������#$#(������ ��	���
������"�

����	������#���&�����	������ ��������-��������	����� ���������
���-����	����������
�����
���	�	��	���� ��������� ��$��������-�� �$�#�-	�����
�������� :--�	���
��6�������>��%8 ���������� ���"���	������������

���	������"�� �� ���$$������:������+��	���-��������	����������������$$�����+	�������"�� �-�������
����	��-	�$�� �����6�$��������9����	� ���1
����2�%��6�$�!�8 ���������	����������:--�	���
�6��������	�����9��	�
30



���������� ���	
������	��������	�������	������	���������������	���������������	������������������	�����	����	���
��

 ���!����"�#����#������������$�%��& ������# �$
 ��'

����	���"�����	���������(�)�������

�������� �����	������������	����	#�*+ �������������,�-��#.�/����������� ������������	���/���������(�	�0�$��������1����	� ��� ������2���������(����������������������� �����3((�����(�� �+	��������������� �	�#4 ��(�����������
�����	���
����(���� �,�-�������5	�����	�������������(����	
��6���	����������(�� ��7��� 8
��������9�"�	�3��������� ��	 ���������������	���� �������$��������$�
�	�
���
���(�(�������
� �	�� �#��	
��	���	���/��� ��
�����������

$��������������	��� ����������	����	�����(��	����������
����� ��	 ����:9����3�%��)�������

���� �)�������������2�"���"���������	��:�����
%�"�� �� �$�������� ��	����	������#�1����������"�	����%���������	�������	�	�"��������������������(�	����$����������	��
�$��"�� �$�������������$������ �	�������#�7����
%����"�� ���������
���"���	����
�������

�����$�	��������	��� �������	���� �����	�������(�	����	����	������	��������������,�-��#��4 �����	��������
������������������� ����	���
�������	���	��� �������������	����� �� ��������	���������	���$$�����#�4 ��	����	� ����� ��	�������(�����"�$���
��(����$$�����&��������������������������	����	� �������������	�����,�-�������5	�����	���" �� ����"�	%���"�� �$�	��� �����������������	�������	�	��������������8��	��	�����;�$�����(�" �$��	�������������� ����%�	�#�4 ����	�����,�-������� ������"��
�������	����	� �$�� ���
�������������������� �����$������	�����	�������	���	������ ��������������
�����
���	���%���%����������	��������%����	������������������&'��$�������	��������������	����<��������#1����������"�	���((�	���=�����(�"�����(����	�������������������������

�"�	���((�	������$ 
�����
�������� ��	�	�� �����	����	���" �� �	�� ����	������������� ����	�����	����#�1��������"�	����

�����������$���	����
�����" �� ��

�"��(�	�	������������
�����������,�-��#�/�������������������6�	�����������	��������������&��� ��(�

�"&������	���"����$���(�" �� �"�	���������������������
����	������ ���"�

���������������� �������#�4 �����������
���������������,�-��#��4 �����$���
������������ ��(��
�#��8�	������������� ����%�	���$�����(�" �� ����������
��� ����	����(���������������� ����	��>���������?��
�� ����%�	���� �����	������"����	����
�	
���$�"�	����� �����#�9���������	����
�	
�����&?��
�� ����%�	����	���	����

������	����������������		�	�������������	����	����	� �����"��"�	����
�����	��� �� �$�����������	�������������
�����%����� �$��������,�-��#��4 �����������������$��� ��$����$�	��������������� ��	����	� #�4 ���"�	���	��������%�

��/����>�� ���������� ����	���	������������	�	����	� ����������(��#�,�-��>�����������"�	���
�����
�������������"�� ���
��	��
����
�����������
������������$�������$$��	������" ��$�� ��� �	"�������"�	���(���	����	����	� #��,�����(���	�����������	����
��	��
��� �$��
��������� ������
��$�%��������������"�� �� ����
��� ���"�	������	���"������ ������#��$$�������	���	������	����������� �����������(�� ����	�����((�	��������,�-��#�1����������"�	��$�	��
�%�
��������������������"��"�	��"�	%����"�� ���$$�������	������������� ����	������ ������#�������������������������������������%��"�� ���
�����
���������((��(�� ����$$������7	�����>�1����	��������	������ ����$$������@������7��	�>��2���)�	%�	������	#�4 �������	�������(
��	��������� ����	�����������$$������
����	������	�����	�������������	�������#8�������
����	��(	�$�� �����3((�����(�� ��+	��������(�������	����������$$�	�	����	� �����	�� ���(�	��	�������������������" ��"�	������=�6��	� ��	��"�	%������� ��	���	�"��%A�� ������	������
���
�"&����$��������������	������������ ��	����	� ���	��������������,�-��#�)�>	���	�����������
��� ���$���
��(���$$�����&������������������&��������	����	� ��������,�-��#��4 �����������(�� ��$���(�
(�

����� �����/>�������������������$��#�/�>��" ���	����	� ��������
��������	������ ��
��
��%�
�%�#�,�-�������5	�����	��"�	%���"�� �����	�	����������$���(����������������������� ��(�" �� �(�������������	����
�	�	��!�(��
����	�������������	���"�A���������
����A����	������	���"�A����%�	����������
����	����	� A�������
�$����A������
����	���

���A�"���������A��	������
���	�	��	��������A�������A��������	��� #�/�>�����������$��������	��������������	���(�� ���	�B�����������0�	$���+���

����������	���$$��������������$�B�	�" ���$������	�����	������������������&��� �(�

�"&������	���"������������"� �
����"�� ���������
����#��/����(�����
�� ������$��" �
������������
�������	��	����
�#�
31



���������� ���	
������	��������	�������	������	���������������	���������������	������������������	�����	����	���
��

 ���!����"�#����#������������$�%��& ������# �$
 '�'

(�
%����"�� �	����	��"��������������������)���

���" ��
��	�����*� �	�� ��� �������"��� �	� �	��� ���" ���	����	����	��������� ��� �$���"���*�+���,���
��#�-��"����
�����	��%����� ���	���������*�.�������

��	����������" ��	�������� ���"�

�������������$��������� ��������������%����� �$��������� �������� ��	����	������#�( ���� ��%���$��*�	���%����� �$�������� ��	����	������������� ���� ��%���$��*�	�������������������
�%�����"���$�"�	����*�	�� ����$$�����������" �
���������)���

���" ��
����������
������ �����	��������������������&$��� �*��
��������*����
����� �$�
������
�����+�����,$�	���#����)
����+�%��-�$���������"��������������������	�����
���	��	�/���#�0��1	�����	�2���
����������������	����	� ���� � ����	���	����������$������*��**�	���
�� ��������	����#�+���	���	�����������"	�����	����������*�����������	������	����	���	������#�,���������
��	���
����*����������� ��$��������*� �$�#��

���	���	�����
����� �������	�*�	�0����	����������
�3����	� ��� �������	�*�	�����������
�,��
��������� �������
��������������� ��4��	����)	��	�$#�( ��	�/�����
���	��������*��������������	��*	�$�� �������	�*�	�+���	����������� ��	�����
�����������
������)	�/��������	�$������*������
��������+���	���	���5���������*������
���������6�� ��� ������+�����3����	� ������	6�� ��4����$���7�������,

������������ �����������������
����8**���#

32



33



��������� ��		�
����������������������	�
��	������������

�		�����������	��
� ���	������!��!����!���������"���		�
��#�������������������	�
��	������������$���%��&	�
��� ���

'())(*+�,-�./01�23�34(5267�28)(*(3)�9(67:;6<28=>?@ABC������"���D�"����>E�>CA� F ��G?EEBHA@IJK�LMNOPQRSOM�TKUOVNMWXRK�YQSZKSKV�[QS\M]�WQ�YNQVK�QXW�WJOV�NKUOVNMWOZK�]KMR�WQ�YQSVO\KR�JXS\RK\V�QP�̂ONNV_�VQ̀ KUQQ\_�VQ̀ K�̂M\ab�RKMNN]�̂M\�QSK�PQR�WJK�UKSKRMN�cX̂NOY�MS\�YQXSW]�UQZKRS̀ KSWdVe�OV�bVVK̀ N̂]�fONN�ghij�kJOYJ�kONN�YQVW�XV�̀ONNOQSV�QP\QNNMRV�KZKR]�]KMR�̂]�NÒOWOSU�XV�PRQ̀ �YQSWRMYWOSU�kOWJ�YQ̀ `XSOW]l̂MVK\_�SQScRQPOW�QRUMSOmMWOQSV�MS\�NQYMNX̂VOSKVVKV�PQR�nXMNOW]�VKRZOYKV�WJK]�cRQZO\K�WQ�]QX�MS\�]QXR�SKOUĴQRVab�YQXcNK�QP�KoM̀ cNKV�OS�pMSWM�LRXm�LQXSW]a�qXR�pJKROPPrV�qPPOYK�YQSWRMYWV�kOWJ�WJK�JOUJN]�RKVcKYWK\�sMSXV�QP�pMSWMLRXm�WQ�QZKRVKK�QcKRMWOQSV�QP�QXR�RKYQZKR]�YKSWKRa�tP�OW�OV�RKnXORK\�WJMW�VXYJ�VKRZOYKV�JMZK�WQ�̂K�YMRROK\�QXW�QSN]�̂]cX̂NOY�K̀ cNQ]KKV_�OW�kONN�YQVW�pMSWM�LRXm�LQXSW]�JXS\RK\V�QP�WJQXVMS\V�u�OP�SQW�̀ONNOQSV�u�QP�M\\OWOQSMN�\QNNMRVaqR_�LQ̀ `XSOW]�fRO\UKV�dLfe�u�QSK�QP�QXR�NMRUKVW�SQScRQPOWV�WJMW�K̀ cNQ]V�SKMRN]�hjj�VWMPP�OS�QXR�WROlYQXSW]�RKUOQS�ucRQZO\KV�nXMNOW]�VKRZOYKV�WQ�hv_jjj�YNOKSWV_�PRQ̀ �YJON\RKS�WQ�VKSOQR�YOWOmKSV_�KZKR]�]KMRa�tP�bf�ghij�cMVVKV_�Lf�u�MS\`MS]�QWJKRV�u�kONN�̂K�VKZKRKN]�NÒOWK\�PRQ̀ �VXccN]OSU�VKRZOYKVa�wMVVMUK�QP�bf�ghij�kONN�RKVXNW�OS�PKkKR�SKK\]�cKQcNKUKWWOSU�WJQVK�YQSWRMYWK\�VKRZOYKV�WJK]�\KVKRZK�u�MS\�OW�kONN�YQVW�XV�̀XYJ�̀QRKaxXRWJKR̀ QRK_�bf�ghij�OV�XSPMORa�LOWOKV_�MSQWJKR�NKZKN�QP�NQYMN�UQZKRS̀ KSW_�JMZK�̂KYQ̀ K�KoK̀ cW_�MV�MRK�WJK�YQXSWOKV�QPpMS�xRMSYOVYQ�MS\�pMSWM�LNMRM�YQXSWOKVatWrV�VcKYOMN�OSWKRKVW�\KMNl̀MyOSU�MW�OWV�kQRVWa�bf�ghij�cMVVMUK�kONN�YQVW�YQXSW]�UQZKRS̀ KSWdVe�̀QRK�MS\�PKkKR�cKQcNKkONN�UKW�WJK�VKRZOYKV�WJK]�SKK\az�{|}~���~���|�������}�����}��|����|����������|�~�

34



��������� ��	
����������
������������
������	������ !���"
	�#�����

!��$����%%%��	
����$�����
���&�����
&#���������
�����	�����!���"
	�#����� ���

'(�)*�)+(,-�./01�23456788�9+0�:;<<8<� �=>?@AB?C�D�?@EF�@GHI*�5.JK'�L.MMNO.P��
��%
�!�	�������������!���P�%
����"����!��$���
�	��Q��!���
�$������Q
�����%!��P�"�#
�R��$#�������!�	���#��
��!�$
�	��!��Q�"
&��Q�S�����R
##���T
���&����������!����"�
#������		��R�#�����
�������	������!��S�����R
##�U��
��V������!��	!�V�����
��W
�	��������X��
���U��&Y
��&�����
���&�
R
�������Q����V��&!�Z
��
"��
�	%�Y��P[�����		�����!����!�����!���Q�#Y��$��$#���!���!�#$���������������#��%
�!�����"�
��Y��$
�	�����
�#���
�����#�&�#	�
�	������!�R���##�"
��Q��%�##�
��������!�$����Q�%�%��Y��T
��%��������Q��!��"�����$�Y���$��$#�P[R�������������%����
�!��
������
���\��&��#����
&�#��������]$�
��&������R������R��������#
��#���!
�	��!��!�$$��������!
��
����&!���%����!��&��#��$�##�����
������	
R�������!�����$�Q#�R���Q�%!���!��!������������Q�#���̂�%$��$#����������&�������!���
35



��������� ��	
����������
������������
������	������ !���"
	�#�����

!��$����%%%��	
����$�����
���&�����
&#���������
�����	�����!���"
	�#����� ���

'
��%������������$$��&!��%�#&��
�	�������������	����#
�������(��)�������
���!
�����*�
����&�����&�
����
�����!�������$�
���"��!�
��!�������"������
#����!
��)�&�������#%���������+�������%���!����!�,��� !���%���'
��-���!����%�$�$��(�&�*����'
��������
�����*���!��������
�&#��
�	��!���*
�	��)��!�����	���.�����)���/����0�,���*�������������!��)�
	������1��$
����!������
*���&�#���)��!�����"��!��&�������#����
���
����!
���$"���$����������#��	!���!
��%����!��	!��!��*�
�����
�#�������
"�#��
�����.���#��!����!��	�����"
#
����)�"�
�	��"#�����������"�&,�����#��	!����!
���
���,��������*�������	��#����2��%
)��3��!�����(������������$#�����&��
��3���'����4���
����%
�!�'
������!
�#��	��
���%
)��2�
����5��!�������*�#�����*��
�	���	��!���5!�����!�	��#����'
��%�����)
����������	��������� !��%�#������������$��$#��#
,��!
����		���#%����,�$�����
���!��#��$�%
�!�	�
�	���������!��5�����*
##��3��
�6�����%!����!����*���)���7�������(�,��%��!���
���!���"�&������!��&���8�
�%�����	���
���
����������!�#$�,��$��!�����
��&�����
���
��	�����!�$�����		����
��#��&�##���������
�&#�����!������
��*�
�����*�����#
,���!��.�##�%�������&��6
�&�����2�������������������(��%���$#�
�#���"*
�����!����!��%���%�##�#
,����*�����!��&���������!
	!#����$�&����9�*���������"�	��
������!�	��!��&��������	�����		��:�
��#�����,���"�&,"������������������#��������������"�����%����#%�������$#���!��,)�#�)����&�*��	���)�3��
��6������*�����0��
���%��������)��!��,
������$��$#���*���(;*��"�������!��!����������
�������!��,
���#
��#��!������9
,,
��%����#%�����!��)
������	��������$��������(�0��
���%����!����#����#8�������,�������
��8�����������
	!���$�$�����%
�!"�#��
������(�#
,���!���3!��!�����*
�
���������*���)�%���%
�!�
���(�,��%��!
�&�����
���
����"�����$#�&��"�&������)�!������"�&������)�'
��������		�� !��,�����)��%!�������	�*�����5�����*
##����������%
##�����"��)�	������<<< ����.����#��&���"����&!�����������==�����!����#�>�	
����$�����
���&���
36



��������� �	
��
�������	�������������
����	�������	�������
����������������������

���� �����!�����"
��������!"	��#����������������$	
%�
�����%�	��%��%�����%"
��%"	����%�	������%
������%����%�%���%���� ���

&'()*+(( ,-./0-1 21.3345 67895148-:-.;�<9/./-=>?89@�� ��	
�� A�������$	
���� B��
������� C�$���� D����	� D#����
�� E��"� F�
G����" A		��HIJ�KJLMNONP�QIRLN�SN�TONPO�UJVWUIVNPXY�ZI[KSPO\�JOPSNM[�]V[P�O�̂L\KOQOX
_4̀̀-//�6.a50-̀b�.a�-c75./4?a�9d-54.;49/�./�e?ff7a4/g�h14ci-9j�,?f-ab�ka3.a/9b�.ac�e04;c1-a�d1?i1.fb�49;??l4ai�./�m-;d�3?1�4a3?1f./4?a�?a�0?9d4/.;�f./-1a4/g�5.1-n�o60f7-;�20.;-1�pp�6.a/.�e17̀�6-a/4a-;q�rs�tINuS�vVRWw�xyz{y�|}~��x�z{�z��ED�AB� ������������ ���EF�E�A� � ��E��AB� ����������D���DFFB@A��������������������������������������� ��¡�¢£�����¤���¥�¦�¥¡��§�§̈����¤�¥©�� ��ª��«�¬���¡� �¤�����£¥�¤������ ������®�©�¦ ¥�����̄¥���¤� �°�©£�¦ ¥���¦ ¥��� �� ��� ¡£���©����¥���̈��¥�«���±¡�§�����  �̄��¤�¦¥ ���©���¡�� �� ¥²���®  �̄��̈�³¥�́¤�¡±�� ������¦���¡�µ�®��©́¥��£¥ ¤¥��������¡ �¶�©©���¡�����́ �̄��� ��¡£����©�¡���́�¤�����¤�£¥�����©���¥�����·�© ��©� �̧�́���©¹ ̄�́��� �����������®¥̄�«�����¡������¥́�°�©£���́�£ ¡��́���¦ ¥��� �� ����¡�¥����¡���� �¡���́�§¥��¡�¦��́��¤�¥���¡���� ¡£���©¡��¡����  ²���©  ²«º��±¡�¶�¥̈������� �¡���»�¡��́����������� ���¡���́¤¥����¡����̄�¥��� ��¡�«�º��¥��©©̈�©�²������¦�����������̈���́�§¥��¡�¦��́��¤�¥���¡«»����¡��́�¡�����́����¥́��§ ̄��� £©����� �¡�����®¼¡���� �¡������¡̄¥¤���©�́�©�¶�¥̈� ¦���§�§̈���������¥�¡̄©�������¦���� ���¥�¡£�¥�� ¥̈��¡¡̄�¡��¡��̈¡��������� ����©������¡�¶����¥��̄������́�¥�́ �̄�́§¥��¡�¦��́��¤«º��́�¦�����©̈���������� ¥�����̄¥�©�¡�́��»�¡��¡��́«������¡��́�°�©£�� ̄©́����©̄ �́�¦��́§��²� �� ¡£���©¡�¦¥ �¦�¥¡�¼������́�¡�� �́¼���� ¡«� ���©©�� ¡£���©¡����®�©�¦ ¥�����¥���©�²���������� �¡�� �®¼¡���� �¡���́�§¥��¡�¦��́��¤«�����̈��¥¡�¤ ������®�©�¦ ¥����½��©���®�¥��¹ ̄�́��� ��§�¤���� ©©�����¤�́���� ��¾̄�©��̈� ¦�� ¡£���©���¥��� ���©£

¿ÀÁÂÃÄÅÆÇ�ÈÀÉÂÅÊÃËÉ���!"	���	�����%�"��	����Ì�#
���$Ì����Ì���	������$	
�����	����������Ì
�����
��
����������������$	
����Í�������
��	��Ì���	�!�Î������
����$
	������#�	���Ï
����	������#	Ï�Ï
��!����
�F��
�����Ð���
�
�����
���������
���%�"��	��
�� �Ñ���#�	���Ï
��Ò
���$Ì����
�� �Ñ����#	Ï��Ï
���	����"���Í	�������%�"��	��
�� ��Ï
��Ò
���$Ì����
�� �Ñ����#	Ï��Ï
��Ñ���	�Ï�����	��������Í	�������%�"��	��
�� ��#	Ï��Ï
��Ò
���$Ì����
�� �Ñ����#	Ï��Ï
���	�
" ����

��DFFB@A�nnn

37



��������� �	
��
�������	�������������
����	�������	�������
����������������������

���� �����!�����"
��������!"	��#����������������$	
%�
�����%�	��%��%�����%"
��%"	����%�	������%
������%����%�%���%���� ���

&'()*+,-)�./&0(1�+,20&/3�2,&0)0'()�+/4,�+'-,�0(.'-+,2�&5'0&,)6�70(&,�89:;<�=50)�0(.'-+/=0'(�5/)>,,(�?')=,2�/=�@/3A')?0=/3@'+?/-,6'-1<�/�)0=,�5,/3=5�,B?,-=)�4('C�/>'*=�>*=�('=�=5/=�./+030/-�='&'()*+,-)6DEFGH�IEDJK(�L*3M<�=5,�@/30.'-(0/�A,/3=5�@/-,�N'*(2/=0'(�?/-=(,-,2�C0=5�O,3?�='�/22�0(.'-+/=0'(�/>'*=�@P),&=0'()<�>-,/)=.,,20(1�/(2�Q/10(/3�>0-=5)�/.=,-�@P),&=0'()�.'-�,/&5�@/30.'-(0/�5')?0=/3�?-'Q020(1+/=,-(0=M�&/-,6R')=�5')?0=/3)�5/Q,�/�?/1,�'(�O,3?<�/(2�=5,�0(.'-+/=0'(�/??,/-)�0(�/�>'B�5,/230(,2�SR/=,-(0=M�@/-,T/=/U�'(�=5,�-015=P5/(2�)02,�'.�=5,�?/1,6V)�T-6�7/(2-/�A,-(W(2,X<�=5,�.'*(2/=0'(Y)�?-,)02,(=�/(2�@Z[<�?*=�0=<�=5,�02,/�C/)�='�?-'Q02,0(.'-+/=0'(�='�?,'?3,�SC5,-,�=5,M�/3-,/2M�/-,6U\5,�.'*(2/=0'(�5/)�>,,(�C'-40(1�C0=5�'=5,-�)=/=,C02,�?/-=(,-)�='�3'C,-�=5,�-/=,�'.�*((,&,))/-M�3'CP-0)4�@P),&=0'()�='�=5,�(/=0'(/3�1'/3�'.�8]6̂�?,-&,(=�>M�89896@/30.'-(0/Y)�-/=,�0)�8_6;�?,-&,(=<�*?�.-'+�8:�?,-&,(=�0(�:̂^̀6[(&,�/�+'=5,-�5/)�5/2�/�@P),&=0'(<�)*>),a*,(=�>0-=5)�=,(2�='�>,�>M�@P),&=0'(<�C50&5�0)�+'-,�&')=3M<(,/-3M�_9�?,-&,(=�5015,-�=5/(�.'-�/�Q/10(/3�>0-=5<�/&&'-20(1�='�=5,�.'*(2/=0'(67*==,-�R/=,-(0=M�/(2�7*-1,-M�@,(=,-�0(�7/(=/�@-*X�5/)�=5,�3'C,)=�@P),&=0'(�-/=,�0(�7/(=/�@-*X�@'*(=M<:_68�?,-&,(=6�V=�T'+0(0&/(�A')?0=/3<�0=�0)�8:6]�?,-&,(=<�/(2�/=�b/=)'(Q033,�@'++*(0=M�A')?0=/3<�]96_?,-&,(=6c-,/)=+034�&'(=/0()�&,33)<�5'-+'(,)�/(2�/(=0>'20,)�=5/=�5,3?�?-'=,&=�>/>0,)�.-'+�033(,))6\5,�V+,-0&/(�V))'&0/=0'(�'.�d,20/=-0&)�0(�89:8-,/..0-+,2�0=)�-,&'++,(2/=0'(�=5/=�>/>0,)�)5'*321,=�'(3M�>-,/)=�+034�.'-�=5,�.0-)=�)0B�+'(=5)�>*==5'),�0(=,(=0'()�&/(�>,�*(2,-+0(,2�>M�5015�@P),&=0'(�-/=,)6�V.=,-�)*-1,-M<�=5,-,�&/(�>,�/�2,3/M�0(=5,�+034�&'+0(1�/(2�=5,�+'=5,-�+/M�('=�5/Q,�=5,)=-,(1=5�='�1,=�*?�'(�5,-�'C(�'-�30.=�=5,�>/>M�='.,,26@/=5M�@/Q/(/*15<�20-,&='-�'.�@'++*(0=M�c-021,)Yb'+,(<�K(./(=)�e�@5032-,(�?-'1-/+<�0),(=5*)0/)=0&�/>'*=�=5,�(,C�/??-'/&56SR')=�'.�'*-�&30,(=)�*),�)+/-=?5'(,)�/(2�)'&0/3+,20/<U�)5,�)/02<�('=0(1�bK@�*),)�=,B=�+,))/10(1='�)&5,2*3,�/??'0(=+,(=)�/(2�>-,/)=.,,20(1�?,,-&'*(),30(16�Sd/-,(=)�C/(=�='�+/4,�0(.'-+,2&5'0&,)�/(2�=5,M�/-,�3''40(1�.'-�=50)�0(.'-+/=0'(�>,.'-,<�2*-0(1�/(2�/.=,-�?-,1(/(&M6UfgHhDEgiG�jEiFkD\C'�+'+)�C5'�-*(�l*-)0(1�R'=5,-)�@'*(),3�0(�7/(=/�@-*X�)5/-,2�=5,0-�?,-)?,&=0Q,)6SKY+�('=�)*-,�0=�C033�5/Q,�+*&5�'.�/(�0+?/&=�3'&/33M<U�)/02�c,&&/�7&5,0>3/*,-<�'(,�'.�=5,�3,/2,-)<�('=0(1=5,�=C'�5')?0=/3)�0(�7/(=/�@-*X�/-,�)0+03/-�0(�=,-+)�'.�=5,0-�-/=,)6SK�=50(4�0=Y)�/�1-,/=�02,/<U�)/02�5,-�&'P3,/2,-<�m/=0,�b0330/+)<�C5'�-,),/-&5,2�@P),&=0'(�-/=,)�'(�5,-�'C(>,.'-,�5,-�.0-)=�>/>M675,�.,3=�3*&4M�='�5/Q,�/�5')?0=/3�C0=5�/�:_�?,-&,(=�@P),&=0'(�-/=,�>*=�)5,�)/02�+/(M�C'+,(�5/Q,�3,))�'.�/&5'0&,�>,&/*),�0=�2,?,(2)�'(�C50&5�5')?0=/3)�=5,0-�0()*-/(&,�&'Q,-)67/(&5,X<�C5'�,B?,&=)�='�3,/Q,�5,-�n'>�0(�7/(=/�@-*X�/(2�+'Q,�='�7/(�L'),<�)/02�)5,�0)�('=�)*-,�0.�)5,C033�&'(=0(*,�C0=5�=5,�0()*-/(&,�)5,�5/)�('C67'�5,-�5')?0=/3�&5'0&,�0)�*?�0(�=5,�/0-6SK�(,,2�='�.0(2�)'+,=50(1�C5,-,�K�C033�>,�&'+.'-=/>3,<�C0=5�5015�-/=,)�'.�>-,/)=.,,20(1<U�)5,�)/026
38



 
The 2017 Mountain Affair 
By See Below on September 1, 2017 

 
A Night Set Aside to Celebrate the San Lorenzo Valley 

Mountain Community Resources, a program of Community Bridges, invites the public to its 
32nd annual Mountain Affair on Friday, October 13 from 6 to 10 p.m. 

In a nostalgic nod to the program’s Italian Affair, last held in 2013, the event will be held and hosted in 
part by Ristorante Casa Nostra in Ben Lomond, for a night of fine Italian dining. 

“We’re excited to celebrate the heart of the valley community we serve,” said Raymon Cancino, Chief 
Executive Officer of Community Bridges. “Now more than ever, support for MCR’s programing is 
critically important, and we hope that you’ll join us in raising hope, a glass, and the support needed to 
ensure our doors continue to stay open five days a week for the families in need.” 

The Mountain Affair will feature local wine, a silent auction by Santa Cruz 
Mountains Makers’ Market vendors, a Fund-a-Need auction benefiting 
families in the San Lorenzo Valley, and live music by the Soul Fingers jazz 
trio. 

The Mountain Affair is Mountain Community Resources’ single largest 
fundraiser of the year, making it possible to serve more than 400 families 

39



throughout the San Lorenzo Valley and Scotts Valley community each year. All proceeds from the 
event support MCR’s parent education, one-on-one counseling, food and clothing pantry, youth 
probation support and more. 

Mountain Community Resources invites anyone 
from the public to attend this celebration of the 
valley community. Tickets are on sale for $75 
each at mcr2017.eventbrite.com. 

Since 1982, Mountain Community Resources has 
been providing community outreach and advocacy, 
parent education, clothing, food pantry services 
and more to over 400 families throughout the San 
Lorenzo Valley and Scotts Valley communities. 
From health care enrollment to emergency relief, 
MCR is the go-to resource for so many neighbors 
in need. 

••• 

Mountain Community Resources is part of the Community Bridges Family Resource Collective. Learn 
more at www.communitybridges.org/mcr. 

 

40



��������� ��	
���������	
�������������	���������������

�

������� !��� "����
�"������#"�	
��#"���
#"�
���#��"���	$#
������%��#��#�����#"�
������&'�&(� ��(

)*+�,-.+/012*3�,/4*567*�8/5�9/-5�:/0* �� ;*65<�=/5*�>?@A> BCDEFGHIEJEKG

L�MNOP�QRBSTURNVQWPXYQQ�XNBSUBZ�QMPRP�BRP�BS�PTQN[BQPO\]]]�ORPFGB[PRT�NS�QMP�̂RPBQPRVB_BR̀�YBaaPbc̀SP�WBQT̀SYNaaPUNQbÙdSUNa[P[XPR�TBNO�NQeT�BX̀dQFGf]g�̀h�QMP�Ù[[dSNQb�QMBQ�NTaNYNŜ �NS�hPBR�dSUPRQBNS�BX̀dQi�QMPhdQdRPcT̀�QMPb�BRP�QBjNŜ �QMNT�TQPV�Q̀TM̀ W�QMPNR�TdVV̀RQcBRNPa�NT�b̀dR�QbVNUBa�ÙaaP̂PTQdOPSQi�_dTQQRbNŜ �Q̀�hN̂dRP̀dFGQ�WMBQ�MP�NT�̂̀ NŜ �Q̀�Ò �WNQMMNT�aNhPc�BRNPa�RB[NRPkZ�N�aNjP�[BQMi�PYPRTNSUP�N�WBT�B�aNQQaPjNOcBSO�N�WBSQ�Q̀�XP�BXaP�Q̀�dTP[BQM�NS�WMBQPYPR�Ne[�̂̀ NŜ �NSQ̀cFGXNBSUBZ�MP�NT�BaT̀�dSÒ Ud[PSQPOiBXaP�Q̀Ẁ Rj�BT�B�QdQ̀R�XPUBdTP̀h�QMP�OPhPRRPO�BUQǸS�VR̀ R̂B[cllFG�OBUB�MBT�XPPS�N�Ò SeQ�WBSQ�Q̀i�URb�̀SQYcXNBSUBZ�MP�NT�QRbNŜ �Q̀�XPTQR̀ Ŝ �h̀R�MFGNT�hB[Nabcll�N�Ẁ daO�MBYP�SPYPR�̂dPTTPOQMBQ�NQ�Ẁ daO�XP�TdUM�BXN̂N[VBUQcFGXNBSUBZ�NQeT�TQdOPSQT�aNjP�MN[QMBQ�NSTVNRPO�QMP�UNQb�̀hWBQT̀SYNaaP�Q̀�ÙSTNOPR�BRPT̀adQǸSOPUaBRNŜ �NQTPah�BORPB[PR�UNQbchPaNVP�MPRSBSOPkZ�WP�BRP�QBajNŜBX̀dQ�FGB�V̀VdaBQǸS�QMBQ�SPYPR[BOP�QMPOPUNTǸS�Q̀�Ù[P�MPRPcQMPb�WPRP�X̀ d̂ MQ�MPRP�BT\mbPBRm̀aOTi�fmbPBRm̀aOTiNShBSQTcBSO�S̀ W�QMPb�BRP�XPNŜVdSNTMPOh̀R�T̀[PQMNŜ �QMPb�SPYPRÙ[[NQQPOcFGXNBSUBZ�WMNaP�QMP�OPUaBRBQǸS�NTaBR̂Pab�Tb[X̀aNUi�QMP�UNQbNTBaT̀�_̀NSNŜ �B�ÙdSQbWNOP�Phh̀RQQ̀�MPaV�OBUB�RPUNVNPSQT�RPSPWQMPNR�BVVaNUBQǸS�XPh̀RP�QMPFGVR̀ R̂B[PSOTcRBb[̀ SZ�̀dR�Ù[[dSNQb�MBT�RPBaabÙ[P�Q̀ P̂QMPR�BSO�MBT�URPBQPO�BhdSO�BT�WPaai�XPUBdTP�̀SP�̀hQMPFGXBRRNPRT�Q̀�BUQdBaab�Ò NŜ �OBUBNT�QMP�nopq�BO[NTTǸST�hPPi�T̀WPeRP�MPRP�Q̀�TQBb�TBSQB�URdk�NTWMPRPVP̀VaP�UBS�̂̀ �BSO�Ò SBQPONRPUQabcXNBSUBZ�BRNPaeT�OBUB�PrVNRPT�NSFG\]spcMP�NT�h̀UdTNŜ �̀S�MNTPŜ NSPPRNŜOP̂RPP�BSO�MP�M̀ VPTMP�WNaa�̂PQ�Q̀�dTP�NQcll�WP�BRP�_dTQ�RP̂daBR�VP̀VaPiFGWP�BRP�S̀ Q�̂̀ Òi�S̀ Q�XBO�mm

tuvwx�yz�{|}uz~��t���� ��� �����
����������������������������


���������������� ��¡¢�¢� �£�¡���¢�¤��¥�¦ ��§� �� �̈©���¦����¢�¢� ̈���ª��«�¬�

 ® ����& ����̄ ° ± ² ³�
41



��������� ��	
���������	
�������������	���������������

�

������� !��� "����
�"������#"�	
��#"���
#"�
���#��"���	$#
������%��#��#�����#"�
������&'�&(� ��(

)*+,-*.�/01./21�+,*314,567/48/9�/.71:�7+�;<=742�,;/,>?,;1.1�@7::�61�=/,;�,<87,7A14+;7=574�,;1�B1/4,7B1C�;1;/+�+*==<.,<D�,;7+�8<BB*47,-�/43�+/4,/8.>?*A5,;17.�87,-�8<*487:�7+�/:+<0<,742�<4�/�.1+<:*,7<4,<+*==<.,�,;1�=.<2./B�,<472;,567/48/9�/43�+/4�6147,<�8<*4,-�7+4<@�/�3.1/B1.�8<*4,-�/+�@1::58<*4,-+*=1.07+<.+�0<,13>?*4/47B<*+:-�<4�,;1�.1+<:*,7<4,<3/-5@;78;�B1/4+�B<4,1.1-C�+/4,/�8.*A/43�+/46147,<�8<*4,-�;/01�/::318:/.13�,;1B+1:01+�3.1/B1.EFGHF�IJKL�IMKGHN�JFOOPQR�SQTPGU�VWIW�XVJQFYQJRX@Z?[\]̂_̀̀a�Z]b�+Z]?Z�8>cd�e\_]�?fa�̀_[?�\g�8a]?>Z̀�8\Z[?�h_?_a[�?\�iah\jakb>aZja>�h_?_a[k�_]�[cll\>?�\g�?fa�baga>>ab�Zh?_\]�l>\m>Zj�g\>�hf_̀bf\\bZ>>_̂Z̀[5�B\]?a>anC�+Z]?Z�8>cd�Z]b�+Z]�6a]_?\�8\c]?n�fẐa�Z̀̀�bah̀Z>ab?faj[à̂a[�Z[�kb>aZja>�h\c]?_a[k5*lbZ?ab9�op9qr�/B�=3,�+al�rsC�rpostuvwxv�tyz{|vw�}�~��4a�[�/]hf\>�.al\>?a>@Z?[\]̂_̀̀a�Z]b�+Z]?Z�8>cd�e\_]�?fa�̀_[?�\g�8a]?>Z̀�8\Z[?�h_?_a[�?\�iah\ja�kb>aZja>�h_?_a[k�_][cll\>?�\g�?fa�baga>>ab�Zh?_\]�l>\m>Zj�g\>�hf_̀bf\\b�Z>>_̂Z̀[5�B\]?a>anC�+Z]?Z�8>cd�Z]b�+Z]6a]_?\�8\c]?n�fẐa�Z̀̀�bah̀Z>ab�?faj[à̂a[�Z[�kb>aZja>�h\c]?_a[k5
/b̂a>?_[aja]?.18<BB14313�

42



��������� ��	
��	������������������������	��������	���������
���
����������

��� ���!!!"�����
��#����	���"
������	
����$��������%�&$'()�$*��������%� ���

+,-./�0-1234�5636�783196:�;8,<16-<58==,<-1>�?238,9.23�.8@@6A89612BC*($D������%�����E�F��B��BD(� G �)BD'($D����D'H*�'IC���C��$�(*JKL�MNONLP�QQ�RSK�TUVW�XNYLZ[\L�]̂ [̂\_̀�aKLK̂\Z\Lb�XNYLZ[\L�cNOOYL\Zd�eKfNY_gKf�hXceì�j\kk�aK�lmVU�noOop_\P[d̀�qgZo�Vr̀�[Z�e\fZN_[LZK�c[f[�sNfZ_[o�RSK�KtKLZ�\LgkYPKf�[�̂[O\kdmfZdkK�uZ[k\[L�P\LLK_̀�kNg[k�j\LK̀�k\tK�OYf\g�adZSK�vNYk�p\LbK_f�w[xx�Z_\N�[LP�[�f\kKLZ�[YgZ\NL�j\ZS�[_Z\f[L�\ZKOf�PNL[ZKP�ad�v[LZ[�c_Yx�XNYLZ[\Lf�X[yK_fz�X[_yKZtKLPN_fo�R\gyKZf�[_K�[t[\k[akK�̂N_�{W|�[Z�KtKLZa_\ZKogNOo�v\LgK�V}~T̀�Xce�S[f�n_Nt\PKP�fK_t\gKf�\LgkYP\Lb�n[_KLZKPYg[Z\NL̀�NLKmNLmNLK�gNYLfKk\Lb̀�[�̂NNP�[LP�gkNZS\Lb�n[LZ_d�[LP�dNYZS�n_Na[Z\NL�fYnnN_Z�ZN�ON_K�ZS[L��UU[̂O\k\Kf�\L�ZSK�v[L�MN_KLxN��[kkKd�[LP�vgNZZf��[kkKd�gNOOYL\Z\Kfo�MK[_L�ON_K�[Z�gNOOYL\Zda_\PbKfogNO�Og_o���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ���������������������������¡����� ��� ��������������������������������������������¢��������������������£����������������������¤¡�������������¥¦����§���������¤¡�������������¥¦����������������¤���������������¥ 

43




